
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

WWaasshhiinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  
BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  

MMeeeettiinngg  
DDeecceemmbbeerr  22,,  22002244  

  



 
 
REVISED:  11/27/2024 4:22:05 PM 
 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
DECEMBER 2, 2024 @ 6:00 PM 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM 
116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 

 
 6:00 PM  Call to Order, Commissioner Keyes 
 
Item 1 6:01 PM Organizational Items  

 Election of Chairperson, Commissioner Keyes, Current Chair 
 Election of Vice-Chairperson, New Chair 

 
 6:10 PM Invocation / Pledge 
   Additions / Deletions 
 
Item 2 6:15 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Meeting Minutes for November 4, 2024 
b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
c) 2025 County Commissioners’ Regular Meeting Schedule 
d) 2025 County Holiday Schedule 
e) Revised Pay Tables Effective 12/16/2024 
f) FY2025-26 Budget Calendar 
g) Mark Bardill Tax Foreclosures Contract Renewal 

 
Item 3 6:20 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 4 6:30 PM Bob Steinburg CY25-26 Lobbyist Contract , Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA   
 
Item 5 6:40 PM RESO 2024-036 to form Economic Development Council, Mr. Kelly Chesson, SPC 
 
Item 6 6:50 PM Skinnersville Civic Center Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
 
Item 7 7:00  PM Regional Detention Center Study, Mr. Jason Squires, ACM 
     
Item 8 7:10 PM  PK12 Project & Funding Agreement/Lease Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA                    
 
Item 9 7:20 PM Finance Officer’s Report and Budget Transfers/Budget Amendments, Ms. Missy 

Dixon, Finance Officer 
    
 
Item 10 7:30 PM Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney or Clerk 

a) DSS Annual Report for the Community Child Protection Team  
b) MTW Annual Report for the Child Fatality Protection Team  



 
 
REVISED:  11/27/2024 4:22:05 PM 
 

 
Item 11 7:40 PM Closed Session pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege), and 

§143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 
   

 
ADJOURN 

 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  1    
 
       DATE:  December 2, 2024 
 
ITEM:   Organizational Items      
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Call to Order, Current Chair, Commissioner Keyes 
 

a) Election of Chair 
According to G.S. 153A-39 the Board of Commissioners shall choose one 
member as Chair and Vice-Chair for the ensuing year. Chair Keyes will conduct 
the meeting for the process of electing the new Chair. 

 
b) Election of Vice-Chair 

The new Chair will then conduct the election of the Vice-Chair. 
 

c) Invocation/Pledge 
  

d) Additions/Deletions 
 
  
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  2 
 
       DATE:  December 2, 2024 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Approval of Meeting Minutes for November 4, 2024 
See attachment at the end of the package. 
 

b) Tax Refunds & Releases and Insolvent Accounts 
See attached.  
 

c) 2025 County Commissioners’ Regular Meeting Schedule 
See attached. 
 

d) 2025 County Holiday Schedule 
See attached. 
 

e) Revised Pay Tables Effective 12/16/2024 
See attached. 
 

f) FY2025-26 Budget Calendar 
See attached. 
 

g) Mark Bardill Tax Foreclosures Contract Renewal 
See attached. 
 

h) Revised EOP for RAP LEPC 
See attached. 

 









 

 

Washington County Commissioners’  
Regular Meeting Schedule  

2025 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meetings are held at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room at  

116 Adams Street, Plymouth, unless otherwise noted. 
 

*Meeting to be held in Roper.  
Location will be announced at a later date. 

 
**Meeting to be held in Creswell. 

 Location will be announced at a later date. 
 
 

 Revised:  November 26, 2024 

DAY(S) OF WEEK DATE(S) OF WEEK 

1st Monday January 6, 2025 

1st Monday February 3, 2025 

1st Monday March 3, 2025* 

1st Monday April 7, 2025 

1st Monday May 5, 2025 

1st Monday June 2, 2025 

1st Monday July 7, 2025 

1st Monday August 4, 2025** 

1st Tuesday September 2, 2025 

1st Monday October 6, 2025 

1st Monday November 3, 2025 

1st Monday December 1, 2025 



 Revised: November 26, 2024 
 

 

 

2025 Washington County Holiday Schedule 

2024 HOLIDAYS DAY(S) OF WEEK DATE(S) 

New Year's Day Wednesday January 1, 2025 

Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day Monday January 20, 2025 

Good Friday Friday April 18, 2025 

Memorial Day Monday May 26, 2025 

Juneteenth* Thursday June 19, 2025 

Independence Day Friday July 4, 2025 

Labor Day Monday September 1, 2025 

Veterans Day Tuesday November 11, 2025 

Thanksgiving Thursday & Friday November 27 & 28, 2025 

Christmas Wednesday, Thursday & Friday 
December 24, 25, & 26, 

2025 

 
*Juneteenth is a new Local Holiday approved by the  

Board of Commissioners in 2020. 



Grade Position Title FY25 #POS FY25 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8y7 Step 8y8 Step 9y9 Step 9y10 Step10y11 Step 10y12 Step 11y13 Step 11y14 Step 12y15 Step 12y16 Step 13y17 Step 13y18 Step 14y19 Step 14y20 Step 15y21 Step 15y22 Step 16y23 Step 16y24 Step 17y25+
(YORE) Index: 44 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25+

8 Veteran's Service OfficerFrozen PT 23,260$      23,838$      24,443$      25,062$      25,653$      26,339$      26,971$      27,656$      27,999$      28,342$      28,685$      29,028$      29,398$      29,767$      30,124$      30,480$      30,883$      31,287$      31,670$      32,053$      32,436$      32,819$      33,242$      33,666$      34,087$      34,507$      
Office Assistant/Floater PT
Housekeeper 2
Maintenance Worker I 3
Senior Center Nutrition Prog. Mgr. 1
Asst Register of Deeds 1
Landfill Operator 1
Accounting Techniciation 1
Property Tax Clerk 2
Utilitity/AR Clerk 2
Waterworks Techanician I 4
Administrative Assistant 3 29,673$      30,386$      31,179$      31,905$      32,711$      33,532$      34,379$      35,240$      35,670$      36,100$      36,544$      36,987$      37,465$      37,942$      38,419$      38,896$      39,380$      39,864$      40,362$      40,859$      41,370$      41,881$      42,392$      42,902$      43,439$      43,975$      
Code Enforement Officer 1 30,735$      31,474$      32,267$      33,088$      33,895$      34,755$      35,629$      36,516$      36,974$      37,431$      37,888$      38,345$      38,822$      39,300$      39,777$      40,254$      40,765$      41,276$      41,813$      42,351$      42,869$      43,387$      43,918$      44,449$      45,005$      45,560$      

16
Chief Landfill Operator                            
Water Plant OperatorFrozen

1           
0 31,784$      32,590$      33,383$      34,231$      35,064$      35,952$      36,826$      37,767$      38,237$      38,708$      39,199$      39,690$      40,187$      40,685$      41,175$      41,666$      42,203$      42,741$      43,252$      43,764$      44,328$      44,893$      45,444$      45,996$      46,571$      47,145$      

Airport Operations Manager 1 32,833$      33,666$      34,514$      35,361$      36,248$      37,162$      38,089$      39,030$      39,521$      40,012$      40,509$      41,007$      41,511$      42,015$      42,546$      43,077$      43,628$      44,180$      44,711$      45,242$      45,807$      46,371$      46,950$      47,528$      48,122$      48,716$      
Soil and Water Supervisor 1
Assistant Tax Assessor 1
Delinquent Tax Coordinator 1
Accounting/HR Specialist 1
Recreation Director 1
Senior Center Director 1
Airport Development Director 1
Tax Land Records Coord 1

21 Clerk to Board/Admin. Asst. 1 37,081$      38,022$      38,990$      39,959$      40,954$      41,962$      42,984$      44,100$      44,644$      45,188$      45,746$      46,304$      46,896$      47,487$      48,059$      48,631$      49,020$      49,410$      50,264$      51,118$      51,756$      52,395$      53,054$      53,712$      54,383$      55,055$      
Elections Director (FN1) 1
Deputy Tax Administrator 1
IT Systems Operator 1
Maintenance Supervisor 1 41,396$      42,419$      43,454$      44,516$      45,673$      46,802$      47,918$      49,168$      49,766$      50,365$      50,990$      51,615$      52,267$      52,919$      53,591$      54,263$      54,936$      55,608$      56,307$      57,006$      57,719$      58,432$      59,144$      59,857$      60,605$      61,353$      
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor 1
Grants & Procurement Manager 1
Register of Deeds (FN2) 1 43,481$      44,543$      45,726$      46,828$      47,985$      49,208$      50,418$      51,695$      52,334$      52,973$      53,638$      54,304$      54,976$      55,649$      56,348$      57,047$      57,759$      58,472$      59,198$      59,924$      60,670$      61,416$      62,183$      62,949$      63,736$      64,522$      

28 Deputy Finance Officer/Financial Analys 1 44,529$      45,699$      46,815$      47,944$      49,181$      50,405$      51,682$      52,960$      53,625$      54,291$      54,963$      55,635$      56,327$      57,019$      57,732$      58,445$      59,164$      59,883$      60,636$      61,389$      62,156$      62,922$      63,702$      64,482$      65,288$      66,094$      
34 Tax Administrator 1 50,943$      52,220$      53,537$      54,828$      56,200$      57,598$      59,036$      60,529$      61,288$      62,048$      62,821$      63,595$      64,388$      65,181$      65,994$      66,808$      67,641$      68,475$      69,328$      70,182$      71,063$      71,944$      72,851$      73,758$      74,680$      75,602$      
39 Utilities Director 1 56,267$      57,638$      59,104$      60,583$      62,102$      63,634$      65,207$      66,848$      67,682$      68,516$      69,382$      70,249$      71,123$      71,998$      72,905$      73,812$      74,719$      75,627$      76,575$      77,523$      78,491$      79,459$      80,447$      81,435$      82,453$      83,471$      
40 Planning Dir./Bldg Insp (Dual Role) 1 57,342$      58,781$      60,219$      61,753$      63,272$      64,831$      66,445$      68,139$      68,986$      69,833$      70,700$      71,567$      72,461$      73,355$      74,276$      75,197$      76,132$      77,066$      78,020$      78,975$      80,111$      81,247$      82,121$      82,995$      84,032$      85,070$      

Finance Officer 1
Assistant County Manager 1
FN1: Elections Director & Employee Compensation Subject to NCGS 163-37 Revised/Effective: 12/16/2024
FN2: Sheriff&ROD Compensation Subject to NCGS 153A-92
FN3: Time spent in uncertified positions is not counted for YORE purposes in a higher pay grade/range position resulting from obtaining certification
FY23 Note: Total actual compensation amounts for NCSU Extension staff should be monitored to insure equitable progression compared to regular county staff.  Countywide COLAs shall be apply only to county portion of pay.
Historical COLAs: [2% 2013];     [2% 2015];     [2% 2018];  [1st YORE adj began w/ Jan22' payroll a year after Jan21' grade adj]     [2.5% 7.16.22];     [2.5% 7.16.23];    [2.5% 7.16.24]
FY25:  Mid-range steps added between steps 8 - 17 effective 12.16.24

77,469$      79,405$      81,395$      83,426$      85,523$      

43,118$      42,083$      

43,353$      

45,914$      

51,057$      

74,673$      76,528$      

52,334$      

47,078$      

44,436$      

43,931$      45,014$      46,157$      47,299$      48,476$      49,715$      

51,239$      

52,819$      

55,949$      54,580$      

51,534$      

50,002$      48,798$      47,595$      

50,271$      

53,249$      

46,432$      45,323$      

49,450$      

46,680$      47,850$      49,040$      

50,674$      51,944$      

37,444$      

35,562$      

37,041$      37,962$      38,902$      39,857$      

38,385$      39,353$      40,349$      

40,873$      41,928$      

34,278$      37,391$      38,291$      32,631$      

33,108$      33,935$      34,776$      35,636$      36,523$      

30,560$      31,320$      32,107$      32,894$      33,714$      34,567$      35,434$      36,315$      37,218$      34,137$      

87,647$      89,866$      92,112$      

51,695$      52,973$      54,304$      55,649$      57,034$      58,458$      59,924$      61,403$      62,938$      62,171$      

90,989$      88,756$      

60,663$      53,638$      54,976$      56,341$      57,746$      59,191$      

78,437$      80,400$      82,410$      62,022$      63,595$      65,168$      66,808$      68,475$      70,182$      71,929$      73,758$      75,587$      84,474$      86,585$      

38,184$      39,166$      40,093$      41,088$      42,083$      43,185$      44,261$      45,350$      46,479$      47,676$      48,845$      50,055$      51,292$      52,596$      53,901$      55,259$      56,640$      

49,396$      50,607$      51,872$      

44,987$      46,102$      47,259$      48,442$      49,639$      50,902$      52,167$      53,471$      

44,207$      

45,545$      

48,261$      

36,033$      36,934$      37,847$      38,789$      39,810$      40,778$      41,801$      42,822$      43,884$      

34,997$      35,858$      36,731$      37,660$      38,574$      39,528$      40,590$      41,572$      42,594$      

35,629$      36,530$      37,444$      38,358$      39,326$      40,282$      41,276$      42,351$      43,400$      40,779$      41,813$      42,876$      

39,248$      

27,509$      28,234$      28,921$      29,660$      30,373$      31,166$      31,892$      32,698$      33,519$      34,352$      35,199$      36,072$      36,973$      37,914$      38,856$      39,851$      

 $      38,770 37,841$      36,934$      36,019$      35,132$      33,451$      31,818$      26,460$      

Revised/Effective: 12/16/2024

26 42,445$      43,481$      44,543$      45,712$      46,828$      47,985$      49,195$      

40,847$      

47,851$      49,101$      

25

44

27

22

50,418$      

20

19

50,328$      

43,643$      44,772$      45,874$      46,990$      48,200$      

15

13

14

28,570$      29,296$      37,498$      38,425$      39,380$      40,334$      41,411$      42,446$      

17

18 33,908$      34,782$      44,462$      45,565$      46,748$      

30,009$      30,789$      31,542$      32,336$      33,169$      33,989$      34,822$      35,723$      36,584$      34,406$      35,273$      36,154$      

12

10 25,411$      26,029$      34,997$      35,871$      26,675$      27,361$      28,020$      28,746$      

33,855$      27,132$      27,818$      28,490$      29,216$      29,929$      30,694$      31,421$      32,215$      33,047$      34,702$      36,477$      

37,678$      29,444$      

FY25 Washington County 

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (County - Non Sheriff/Emergency Services & Non-DSS)

11

36,759$      30,198$      30,923$      31,717$      32,497$      33,290$      



Grade FY25 Position Title #POS FY25 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8y7 Step 8y8 Step 9y9 Step 9y10 Step10y11 Step 10y12 Step 10y13 Step 11y14 Step 11y15 Step 12y16 Step 12y17 Step 13y18 Step 13y19 Step 14y20 Step 14y21 Step 15y22 Step 16y23 Step 16y24 Step 17y25+
(YORE) Index: 67 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25+

12 WCSO Animal Control Officer 1 $27,509 $28,234 $28,921 $29,660 $30,373 $31,166 $31,892 $32,698 $33,108 $33,519 $33,935 $34,352 $34,776 $35,199 $35,636 $36,072 $36,523 $36,973 $37,444 $37,914 $38,385 $38,856 $39,353 $39,851 $40,349 $40,847
14 WCSO Admin Asst 1 $29,673 $30,386 $31,179 $31,905 $32,711 $33,532 $34,379 $35,240 $35,670 $36,100 $36,544 $36,987 $37,465 $37,942 $38,419 $38,896 $39,380 $39,864 $40,362 $40,859 $41,370 $41,881 $42,392 $42,902 $43,439 $43,975

Detention Officer 8
EMT Basic 8
Telecommunicator I - Uncert (FN3) 3

16 Detention Corporal 3 $31,784 $32,590 $33,383 $34,231 $35,064 $35,952 $36,826 $37,767 $38,237 $38,708 $39,199 $39,690 $40,187 $40,685 $41,175 $41,666 $42,203 $42,741 $43,252 $43,764 $44,328 $44,893 $45,444 $45,996 $46,571 $47,145
EMT Intermediate 5 $32,833 $33,666 $34,514 $35,361 $36,248 $37,162 $38,089 $39,030 $39,521 $40,012 $40,509 $41,007 $41,511 $42,015 $42,546 $43,077 $43,628 $44,180 $44,711 $45,242 $45,807 $46,371 $46,950 $47,528 $48,122 $48,716
Telecommunicator II - EMD Cert (FN3) 4 $32,833 $33,666 $34,514 $35,361 $36,248 $37,162 $38,089 $39,030 $39,521 $40,012 $40,509 $41,007 $41,511 $42,015 $42,546 $43,077 $43,628 $44,180 $44,711 $45,242 $45,807 $46,371 $46,950 $47,528 $48,122 $48,716

18 Detention - Lieutenant 1 $33,908 $34,782 $35,629 $36,530 $37,444 $38,358 $39,326 $40,282 $40,779 $41,276 $41,813 $42,351 $42,876 $43,400 $43,931 $44,462 $45,014 $45,565 $46,157 $46,748 $47,299 $47,851 $48,476 $49,101 $49,715 $50,328
21 911 Telecom Supervisor - EMD Cert 1 $37,081 $38,022 $38,990 $39,959 $40,954 $41,962 $42,984 $44,100 $44,644 $45,188 $45,746 $46,304 $46,896 $47,487 $48,059 $48,631 $49,020 $49,410 $50,264 $51,118 $51,756 $52,395 $53,054 $53,712 $54,383 $55,055
22 EMT Paramedics 9 $38,184 $39,166 $40,093 $41,088 $42,083 $43,185 $44,261 $45,350 $45,914 $46,479 $47,078 $47,676 $48,261 $48,845 $49,450 $50,055 $50,674 $51,292 $51,944 $52,596 $53,249 $53,901 $54,580 $55,259 $55,949 $56,640
23 Chief Detention Officer 1 $39,246 $40,200 $41,195 $42,284 $43,320 $44,368 $45,471 $46,614 $47,198 $47,783 $48,388 $48,993 $49,591 $50,189 $50,822 $51,454 $52,092 $52,731 $53,390 $54,048 $54,728 $55,407 $56,092 $56,778 $57,487 $58,197
26 WCSO Deputy 8 $42,445 $43,481 $44,543 $45,712 $46,828 $47,985 $49,195 $50,418 $51,057 $51,695 $52,334 $52,973 $53,638 $54,304 $54,976 $55,649 $56,341 $57,034 $57,746 $58,458 $59,191 $59,924 $60,663 $61,403 $62,171 $62,938
27 WCSO Corporal 2 $43,481 $44,543 $45,726 $46,828 $47,985 $49,208 $50,418 $51,695 $52,334 $52,973 $53,638 $54,304 $54,976 $55,649 $56,348 $57,047 $57,759 $58,472 $59,198 $59,924 $60,670 $61,416 $62,183 $62,949 $63,736 $64,522
28 WCSO Sergeant 2 $44,529 $45,699 $46,815 $47,944 $49,181 $50,405 $51,682 $52,960 $53,625 $54,291 $54,963 $55,635 $56,327 $57,019 $57,732 $58,445 $59,164 $59,883 $60,636 $61,389 $62,156 $62,922 $63,702 $64,482 $65,288 $66,094
29 WCSO Investigator 3 $45,632 $46,774 $47,905 $49,127 $50,351 $51,602 $52,906 $54,223 $54,895 $55,567 $56,266 $56,966 $57,678 $58,391 $59,110 $59,829 $60,582 $61,335 $62,095 $62,854 $63,634 $64,414 $66,075 $67,736 $68,582 $69,429

Emergency Mgmt Coord 1
WCSO Lieutenant 2

32 EMS Deputy Director 1 $48,791 $50,029 $51,266 $52,557 $53,887 $55,231 $56,590 $58,001 $58,721 $59,440 $60,186 $60,932 $61,699 $62,465 $63,238 $64,011 $64,811 $65,611 $66,438 $67,264 $68,105 $68,945 $69,806 $70,666 $71,373 $72,080
36 WCSO Chief Deputy 1 $53,067 $54,399 $55,756 $57,140 $58,566 $60,031 $61,510 $63,030 $63,836 $64,643 $65,449 $66,256 $67,069 $67,883 $68,737 $69,591 $70,471 $71,352 $72,233 $73,114 $74,034 $74,955 $75,896 $76,837 $77,798 $78,758
37 EMS Director 1 $54,115 $55,487 $56,885 $58,310 $59,749 $61,255 $62,761 $64,321 $65,134 $65,947 $66,761 $67,574 $68,428 $69,281 $70,135 $70,989 $71,890 $72,791 $73,685 $74,579 $75,513 $76,447 $77,408 $78,370 $79,349 $80,329
45 WCSO Sheriff (FN2) 1 $63,572 $65,184 $66,797 $68,478 $70,187 $71,936 $73,728 $75,602 $76,540 $77,477 $78,441 $79,406 $80,398 $81,391 $82,410 $83,430 $84,470 $85,511 $86,586 $87,661 $88,749 $89,838 $90,975 $92,112 $93,264 $94,415

Refer to FNs on Non-Sheriff/Emergency Services Salary Schedule/Pay Tables Revised/Effective: 12/16/2024
FY25:  Mid-range steps added between steps 8 - 17 effective 12.16.24

Grade Position Title FY25 #POS FY25 Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6 Step 7 Step 8y7 Step 8y8 Step 9y9 Step 9y10 Step10y11 Step 10y12 Step 10y13 Step 11y14 Step 11y15 Step 12y16 Step 12y17 Step 13y18 Step 13y19 Step 14y20 Step 14y21 Step 15y22 Step 16y23 Step 16y24 Step 17y25+
(YORE) Index: 54 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25+

52FN1 Housekeeper  (FN1) 1 $25,411 $26,029 $26,675 $27,361 $28,020 $28,746 $29,444 $30,198 $30,560 $30,923 $31,320 $31,717 $32,107 $32,497 $32,894 $33,290 $33,714 $34,137 $34,567 $34,997 $35,434 $35,871 $36,315 $36,759 $37,218 $37,678
Processing Assistant V 2
IM CW I 0
Vehicle Operator I 5
Transportation Coordinator 1
IM Caseworker II (FN2) 14
Info Processing Tech 2
Social Worker I 0
CS Enforcement Agent II 0
IM Investigator II (FN2) 1
IM Caseworker III (FN2) 5

IM Supervisor II 2
Paralegal I 1
Transit Supervisor 1
Social Worker II (FN3) 5

69 Social Worker III (FN3) 5 $40,026 $41,021 $42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,175 $46,304 $47,582 $48,146 $48,711 $49,269 $49,827 $50,472 $51,118 $51,750 $52,382 $53,061 $53,740 $54,371 $55,003 $55,729 $56,455 $57,134 $57,812 $58,565 $59,318
Social Worker Inv/Ass/Tr (FN3) 3
Social Worker Supervisor II 1
Computer System Administrator I 0 - Frozen

73 Social Worker Supervisor III 3 $48,711 $49,827 $51,118 $52,382 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455 $57,812 $58,565 $59,318 $60,071 $60,824 $61,584 $62,344 $63,117 $63,890 $64,683 $65,476 $66,283 $67,090 $67,944 $68,798 $69,624 $70,451 $71,325 $72,199
75 Social Services Deputy Director 1 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455 $57,812 $59,318 $60,824 $62,344 $63,890 $64,683 $65,476 $66,283 $67,090 $67,944 $68,798 $69,624 $70,451 $71,325 $72,199 $73,126 $74,054 $74,989 $75,923 $76,858 $77,792 $78,760 $79,728
81 Social Services Director 1 $72,100 $73,833 $75,664 $77,609 $79,568 $81,525 $83,555 $85,654 $86,718 $87,782 $88,874 $89,966 $91,093 $92,220 $93,368 $94,516 $95,693 $96,870 $98,088 $99,307 $100,547 $101,788 $103,048 $104,309 $105,599 $106,888

FN1: DSS Housekeeper step values are based on and pasted into the schedule from the non-DSS salary schedule's values for non-DSS housekeepers to create equity between all housekeeper positions Revised/Effective: 12/16/2024
FN2: YORE value subject to work against reduction (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
FN3: Subject to YORE reductions for Work Against/Prior Experience (refer to Supplemental DSS YORE Guidelines v20201216)
CS = Child Support
IM = Income Maintenance
FY25:  Mid-range steps added between steps 8 - 17 effective 12.16.24

17

15 $30,735 $31,474 $32,267 $33,088 $33,895 $34,755 $35,629 $36,516

$51,750

$39,535$39,044 $40,026

$58,565 $60,071 $61,584

$48,146

$43,521$42,997 $44,046

$53,061

$47,582 $48,711

$62,344

$45,175

$41,021

$37,203 $37,646

$41,511 $42,499

$38,566$38,089

$42,002

$45,740 $46,943$46,304

$39,044

$34,540 $35,387

$38,566 $39,535

$35,858 $36,328 $36,765

$40,523$40,026

$34,964

$38,089$29,848 $30,560

$27,051 $27,751 $28,410 $29,136 $29,848 $30,560 $31,327

$31,327 $32,080 $32,873 $33,680 $34,540

$51,750 $53,061

$44,610 $45,740

$35,387 $36,328 $36,765 $37,646$37,203$35,858

$39,535

$32,873 $33,276 $34,110$33,680

$39,044

$43,521

$40,026 $40,523 $41,511$41,021

$32,476$32,080

$57,423 $58,869 $60,348 $61,846 $63,399 $64,986 $66,606 $68,266 $69,970

$36,974 $37,431 $37,888 $38,345 $38,822 $39,300 $39,777

Revised/Effective: 12/16/2024

31 $47,743 $48,939 $50,150 $51,400 $52,691 $54,022 $55,353 $56,724

$46,304 $47,582$42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,17570 $53,740 $55,003 $56,455

63

FY25 Washington County 

$49,827 $51,118 $52,382 $53,740

Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (Sheriff/Emergency Services Only)

$42,002 $42,997 $44,046 $45,175 $46,304 $47,582

$48,711 $49,827 $51,118 $52,382

$48,711

$57,812 $59,318 $60,824$54,371

$46,943 $48,146

$55,729 $57,134

$49,269 $50,472

$50,472

67 $36,328 $37,203 $38,089 $39,044 $40,026 $41,021

65 $32,873 $33,680 $34,540 $35,387 $36,328 $37,203 $38,089 $42,002 $42,499 $42,997 $43,521 $44,610$44,046

61

Revised/Effective: 12/16/2024

$58,122 $59,615 $61,080 $62,613 $64,186 $65,786 $67,426 $69,107 $70,834

FY25 Washington County 
Salary Schedule/Pay Tables (DSS Only)

$40,254 $40,765 $41,276 $41,813 $42,351 $42,869 $43,387 $43,918 $44,449 $45,005 $45,560



Budget Calendar
Washington County, North Carolina

Fiscal Year July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2026 (aka FY26)

Mon* 12/2/24 Presentation of Proposed Budget Calendar & CM/Board
Discussion/Scheduling of Budget Workshop

Wed-Fri** 1/22-1/24 Budget Planning Workshop Date/Time (TBD) CM/CFO/Board

Wed 2/5 Dept. Head Budget Kickoff Meeting CM/CFO
Distribution of Budget Forms & Instructions DHs (MANDATORY)

2/10-2/28 Departmental Budget Consultations/Assistance CM/CFO
Ask for Assistance if needed DHs

Fri 3/7 Departmental Budget Request Submission Deadline DHs 159-10 (4/30)
Includes: Revenues, Expenses, All Supporting Docs/Materials

Departmental & External Budget Request Meetings CM/CFO/DHs/Misc
CM/CFO mtgs with Dept Heads, MTW, Library, Fire, other partners/agencies Budget Ord (3/31)
CM/CFO mtgs with School Admin 115C-429(a) (5/15)

Fri 4/18 Update of tax valuation due from Tax Department Tax

Fri 4/25 Working Draft Expense Budgets to DHs CM

Fri 4/25 Final of tax valuation from Tax Department Tax

Thur 5/1 Balancing of Draft Recommended Budget CM/CFO

Mon* 5/5 Recommended Budget Published w/ CM's Budget Message 159-11 (6/1)
Presented to Board CM 159-11(b)
Filed with Clerk to the Board Clerk 159-12(a)
Board to Confirm Public Hearing Date Board

Fri Publish notice in newspaper stating that budget Clerk 159-12(a)
Wed

5/2 deadline for 
5/7 publication has been filed and is open for public inspection &

setting time & place for public hearing on budget

TBD** May TBD Commissioners work sessions to review budget Board
with departments, agencies, school board as desired CM/CFO/Various

Mon** 5/19 Official public hearing on the budget Board/Public 159-12(b)

Mon* 6/2 Adoption of Budget Ordinance Board 159-13 (7/1)
Budget Ordinance may not be adopted until (a) ten days have

elapsed from date budget is filed  & (ii) public hearing  is held.

NOTES:
* = Reg Board Mtg Date
** = Extra or Non-Regular Board Mtg Date
All dates are subject to changes or adjustment as deemed necessary by the Board or County Management

Revised v20241101

TBD - 3/10-4/18

RESPONSIBLE PARTY
Responsible Party Statute Reference

SCHEDULE BUDGET PROCEDURES/TASKS

2025 DATES



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 1 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

   AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEMO Date:   November 24th, 2024       MEETING DATE: December 2nd, 2024        ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Renewal of Mark Bardill Tax Foreclosures Contract 
DEPARTMENT: Tax/Legal 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Cover Email (2pgs) and Proposed Draft “Tax Foreclosure Attorney Agreement” (7pgs) 

PURPOSE: To approve renewal of an amended contract with Zacchaeus Legal Services from 12/1/24 to 6/30/27. 
 

- Zacchaeus Legal Services (ZLS) has provided tax foreclosure services to Washington County since 2014. 
- It is the only legal service they provide with an internal workforce trained exclusively in this field. 
- All municipalities within the county have also engaged ZLS to assist them in their tax collection. 
- The County intentionally randomly selects delinquent accounts for initial foreclosure action and does not 

intervene in the action once the foreclosure referral is made.  Every effort is made to encourage the taxpayer 
to pay their taxes prior to a foreclosure referral and again multiple times prior to actual foreclosure.   

- ZLS’s current contract is set to expire in December of 2024 and requires renewal. 
- The proposed contract is for an additional 2.5-year term, and contains several changes mainly including: 

o An increase in the standard foreclosure fee from $1200 per parcel to $1500 per parcel for county-
only foreclosures, and from $1500 per parcel to $2000 per parcel for joint foreclosures undertaken 
by multiple jurisdictions simultaneously where applicable. 

o An increase in the upcharges applicable to rare cases with unusually large numbers of defendants. 
o An increase in the anticipated annual escalation from 2.5% to 3.5% 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS:  Direct costs are typically passed on to the Taxpayer for foreclosure activities under 
this contract, unless a bankruptcy is filed which rarely occurs.  Indirectly this service substantially improves the 
Tax Department’s Collection Percentage and overall county revenues from tax collection. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. VOTE: to approve the renewal of the attached Tax Foreclosures Contract with Zacchaeus Legal 

Services, and direct staff to prepare and execute the contract on behalf of Washington County, 
including any additional changes that may be made by the County Attorney for the County’s 
benefit. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 







TAX FORECLOSURE ATTORNEY AGREEMENT 
 
 This agreement, made and entered into this the ____ day of ________________, 2024, by 
and between County of Washington, hereinafter referred to as County, and Mark D. Bardill, 
P.C., a North Carolina professional corporation, trading as Zacchaeus Legal Services, hereinafter 
referred to as Attorney, shall be for the legal services to be provided for foreclosure actions on 
delinquent real property taxes due to the County, and to this end, the parties hereto make the 
following recitals: 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 WHEREAS, Attorney has in excess of thirty-five years of experience serving as Special 
Tax Attorney for the Counties of Onslow, Jones, Craven, Lenoir, Beaufort, Wilson, Warren, 
Chatham, Lee, Cabarrus, Scotland, Tyrrell, Forsyth, Iredell, Yadkin, Gates, Dare, Richmond, 
Washington, Catawba, Chowan, Guilford, Hertford, Pamlico, Northampton, Moore, Franklin, 
Perquimans, Robeson, Rockingham and the Towns of Jonesville, Wallace, Columbia, Rose Hill, 
Yadkinville, Dobbins Heights, Gibsonville, Plymouth, Hoffman, Farmville, Maxton, Roper, 
Hertford, Pembroke, Williamston, Ellerbe, Red Springs and the Cities of Lumberton and 
Laurinburg; and 
 

WHEREAS, Attorney has served as the County’s Special Tax Attorney since 2014 and 
during its service has collected considerable amounts of delinquent revenue at a very low cost, 
ensuring fairness to those taxpayers who pay their taxes on time and avoiding increases in the tax 
rate by collecting taxes that are already on the books; and 
 
 WHEREAS, tax foreclosure is a certain and special area of practice and any attorney who 
serves as a Special Tax Attorney must provide specially trained staff, must advance thousands of 
dollars in costs and must dedicate other resources in order to successfully complete the 
foreclosure assignments made to it; and 
 
 WHEREAS, to support these specially trained staff, advanced costs and other dedicated 
resources, Attorney needs to extend the contract with County to serve as its special tax attorney 
for a term of no less than two (2) years. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, and upon the agreements, 
conditions, and covenants found herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

1. County shall retain Attorney to initiate foreclosure actions on all parcels with 
delinquent County taxes assigned to Attorney in four batches per year on or before the 1st day of 
every May, August, November and February during the term of this agreement, or at different 
intervals, upon mutual agreement of the parties hereto.  

 
 2. The Tax Collector shall provide to the Attorney the name of the delinquent 
taxpayer, the most recent address on file, the total delinquent taxes, including interest and 
penalties by year and a map of the parcel with its identification number.  This information shall 



 2 

be in the form of a computer printout and GIS Map, with other information provided as 
available. 
 

3. All related work and filing of foreclosure actions shall take place within one 
hundred eighty (180) calendar days from the date that the Tax Collector transmits the initial 
information outlined in Paragraph 2 above and the request for foreclosure to the Attorney; 
however, if for some reason, the foreclosure action is not filed within one hundred eighty (180) 
calendar days from the date of transmittal, Attorney shall submit a written statement to the Tax 
Collector as to the reason why the action has not been filed.  If a Taxpayer tenders payment in full 
prior to the filing of the complaint, the Tax Collector must accept payment and no attorney fees 
are due from the Taxpayer. Provided, however, should the Tax Office fail to inform the Attorney 
that a parcel has been paid in full while Attorney continues to work on preparing the case for 
filing, then in that event the Tax Office shall pay Attorney the standard per parcel fee as set forth 
in Paragraph 6 (as reduced by Paragraph 9 and/or increased by Paragraph 10, if applicable), and 
all incurred expenses, copy charges, and the like, including but not limited to those set out in 
Paragraph 12, even though the case has not been filed. 

 
 4. The Attorney shall notify the Tax Collector, in writing, immediately upon the 
filing of a foreclosure complaint with the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court. Attorney and 
County acknowledge and agree that heretofore, the payment of the fee to file tax foreclosure 
cases in the Office of the Clerk of Superior Court and for in-County service by the Sheriff has 
been deferred pursuant to N.C.G.S. Section 105-374(i).  Should the laws of North Carolina be 
changed so that payment of said fees can no longer be deferred or should the Clerk of Court of 
Washington County or the Sheriff of Washington County refuse to adhere to said statute, County 
agrees to immediately advance said fees upon request by Attorney.  
 
 5. The Attorney shall bring the foreclosure to conclusion within two years after 
filing said foreclosure action with the Clerk of Court's office; however, if for some reason, the 
foreclosure action is not concluded within two years of filing, Attorney shall submit a written 
statement to the Tax Collector as to the reason why the action has not been concluded. 
 
 6. The Attorney shall be compensated in each foreclosure action in accordance with 
procedures set forth in the North Carolina General Statutes, Chapter 105 as ordered by a District 
or Superior Court Judge, or as agreed between the instant Taxpayer and Attorney.  Attorney shall 
be guaranteed compensation for foreclosure on each parcel in the amount of One Thousand Five 
Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($1,500.00) plus all incurred expenses, i.e., service fees, copy 
charges, postage, publication costs, filing fees, and the like, including but not limited to those set 
out in Paragraph 12.  Attorney shall be paid said compensation and incurred expenses upon 
redemption of the parcel from foreclosure or as part of the amount paid to purchase the property 
at sale. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, for any parcel for which the 
Attorney files for foreclosure on behalf of the County and on behalf of any municipal unit of 
government, or for which the Attorney ultimately represents the County and any municipal unit 
of government in a foreclosure initially filed on behalf of just one of those jurisdictions, 
including where the taxes of a municipality are placed in the hands of the County Tax Collector 
pursuant to NCGS Section 105-354, (hereinafter “joint representation”), the compensation 
guaranteed to Attorney shall be Two Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($2,000.00) plus all expenses, 



 3 

i.e., service fees, copy charges, postage, publication costs, filing fees, and the like, including but 
not limited to those set out in Paragraph 12, the total amount of which is to be divided equally 
between the County and each such municipality in which Attorney is also its Special Tax 
Attorney, and for those municipalities in which the County collects for the municipality pursuant 
to NCGS Section 105-354, as the interlocal agreement between the County and such 
municipality provides. If the Taxpayer applies to the District or Superior Court for determination 
of a reasonable attorney fee pursuant to the procedures set forth in the North Carolina General 
Statutes, Chapter 105, and the Court awards less than set forth herein per parcel, the County shall 
pay the balance of said compensation and incurred expenses within thirty (30) days of invoice. 
 
County and Attorney agree that the attorney fee set out in this paragraph (as reduced by 
Paragraph 9 and/or increased by Paragraph 10, if applicable) plus all expenses, i.e., service fees, 
copy charges, postage, publication costs, filing fees, and the like, including but not limited to 
those set out in Paragraph 12, as totaled, shall be the “attorney fee” as contemplated by NCGS 
Section 105-374(i) and that Attorney shall not apply to the Court for an amount higher than this 
amount without the consent of the County. 
 
 7. The Attorney shall use its best efforts to be appointed the Commissioner in the 
Order of Foreclosure, and upon public sale of such property pursuant to the Order of Foreclosure 
as provided for in Chapter 105, the Attorney shall be entitled to a Commissioner's Fee, plus 
incurred expenses, in accordance with the schedule provided for in Chapter 105, as ordered by 
the District or Superior Court and approved by the Clerk of Superior Court.  County and 
Attorney acknowledge and agree that in past years an effort has been made in the North Carolina 
General Assembly to revise G.S. Section 105-374(i) to disallow the payment of the 
Commissioner’s Fee under certain circumstances.  If this effort results in an enacted bill during 
the term of this Agreement, County and Attorney agree to make reasonable amendments to this 
Agreement so as to avoid loss to Attorney. Nevertheless, to assist the County in collecting all 
taxes due without reduction by the amount of the Commissioner's Fee, the Attorney agrees that 
as Commissioner, it shall be paid only to the extent available after payment of all amounts so 
ordered in the Order of Foreclosure plus the expenses incurred by the Attorney to advertise and 
give proper notice of public sale of such property.  To this end, these expenses shall be added to 
the amount of taxes, fees and costs as ordered in the Order of Foreclosure to determine the 
opening bid by the County for purchase of such property from local funds.  For purposes of 
illustration, compare the examples below where a typical 5% commission would be appropriate 
in a foreclosure with $2,500.00 of taxes, $2,000.00 of attorney fees and costs and $500.00 of 
advertising/notice of public sale expenses (Total without Commissioner's Fee $5,000): 
 
 Example #1 - County as High Bidder @ $5,000 
 

In this example, the County is paid in full for the taxes and interest which have accrued to 
the date the Order of Foreclosure is entered, the Attorney is paid in full for the attorney 
fees and costs incurred to the date of the Order of Foreclosure, the expenses incurred by 
the Attorney to advertise and give proper notice of public sale are paid, but no 
Commissioner's Fee is paid. 

  
  



 4 

Example #2 - Other High Bidder @ $5,100 
 

In this example, all amounts outlined in Example #1 are paid, plus $100.00 of the 
$255.00 5% Commissioner's Fee is paid. 

 
 Example #3 - Other High Bidder @ $5,500 
 

In this example, all amounts outlined in Example #1 are paid, the $275.00 5% 
Commissioner's Fee is paid, and $225.00 is paid to the Clerk to hold as surplus from the 
sale. 

 
Should the County elect to open bidding in an amount less than all amounts so ordered in the 
Order of Foreclosure plus the expenses incurred by the Attorney to advertise and give proper 
notice of public sale of such property, the County shall pay the Attorney a fixed fee of one 
hundred fifty and 00/100 dollars ($150.00) per upset bid filed in the Clerk’s Office pursuant to 
NCGS Section 1-339.25 in all foreclosure sales and resales until such time as the bidding reaches 
the amount that would have been bid if the County had bid in the amount of all amounts so 
ordered in the Order of Foreclosure plus the expenses incurred by the Attorney to advertise and 
give proper notice of public sale of such property. The Attorney shall invoice the County for the 
total amount of all upset bid fees in connection with a sale or resale upon termination of the upset 
bid period for that sale or resale. Provided, however, in the case of joint representation, this fee 
shall not be doubled but shall be the total fee allowed per upset bid. 
 
County and Attorney acknowledge that the Court appoints Attorney as Commissioner and that as 
Commissioner, Attorney must adhere to the directions of the Court and carry out its duties 
thereto and that Attorney’s compliance with the orders of the Court and Attorney’s duties to 
County as its Attorney do not create a conflict under the State’s ethics provisions for lawyers, or 
if a conflict is created, County does hereby consent as it is fully informed and familiar with the 
process and understands where conflicts may occur, but nonetheless consents. County and 
Attorney also acknowledge that the attorney fee allowed under NCGS Section 105-374 and for 
which County agrees to guarantee to Attorney hereunder, covers the period of Attorney’s 
services from the date suit is filed against a parcel through obtaining and serving the judgment 
authorizing its sale. County and Attorney further acknowledge that Attorney’s services after the 
judgment is served through the date the Final Account is approved and served, are compensated 
solely through any commission that is authorized by the Court and paid from funds available 
from the purchase price but only in those cases in which the parcel actually sells to a third party 
bidder and for an amount that exceeds the amount of the taxes, fees and other costs allowed 
under NCGS Section 105-374.  To this end, County and Attorney agree that County will not 
“pull” a parcel from sale after the judgment authorizing the sale is entered unless 1) County 
certifies in writing that all taxes, fees and costs allowed pursuant to NCGS Section 105-374 and 
this agreement, have been paid in full, or 2) County pays Commissioner the greater of one 
thousand $1,000) dollars or five (5%) per cent of the full appraised value of the parcel as 
assessed by the Washington County Tax Office for the current tax year or five (5%) per cent of 
the highest amount bid for the property. The purpose of this paragraph is to protect the 
Commissioner from being uncompensated for its services where a sale has been ordered by the 
Court. 



 5 

 
 8. If the Taxpayer files a petition in bankruptcy during the period any foreclosure 
action brought pursuant to this agreement is pending, the Tax Collector shall file, as part of its 
claim to the bankruptcy court, the fees, costs and expenses set forth herein, and shall pay 
Attorney the full amount of compensation and the incurred expenses to date within thirty (30) 
days of invoice.  If the Taxpayer's petition is dismissed or a lift of the stay of bankruptcy court is 
obtained during the term of this agreement, Attorney agrees to proceed with the foreclosure and 
complete the remaining services due from it hereunder. 
 
 9. If the County assigns to the Attorney, in any one assignment, more than one 
parcel owned by the same Taxpayer or Taxpayer(s) and none other and encumbered by the same 
liens, the County's obligation to pay the compensation set forth in Paragraphs 6, 7 and 8 shall be 
based on the following per parcel charge:  2 to 5 parcels, the same amount as set forth above per 
parcel; 6 to 10 parcels, the same amount as set forth above less fifty ($50.00) dollars per parcel, 
11 or more parcels, the same amount as set forth above less one hundred ($100.00) dollars per 
parcel, plus all costs and expenses. Provided, however, in the case of joint representation, such 
deductions shall not be doubled but shall be the total amount that the per parcel fee is reduced. 
 

10. The Attorney shall not apply for fees over the amounts aforementioned except for 
unusual, novel, or difficult cases.  County and Attorney acknowledge and agree that a major 
factor in such cases is a high number of parties as defendants or lienholders. To facilitate the 
efficient administration of this agreement as to such cases, without further review by the County 
and irrespective as to sole or joint representation of the County and its municipalities by 
Attorney, the following fee schedule shall apply according to the number of party defendants and 
lienholders involved: 

 
16 - 20 ........................................................................................................................ $3,375 
21 - 25 ........................................................................................................................ $4,312 
26 - 30 ........................................................................................................................ $5,250 
31 - 35 ........................................................................................................................ $6,187 
36 - 40 ........................................................................................................................ $7,125 
41 – Over ......................................... Upon agreement with County on a case-by-case basis 
 
In the event of an unusual, novel, or difficult case, other than those based purely upon the 

number of the parties involved, the County shall provide reasonable additional compensation for 
the extra time necessitated by the unusualness, novelty, or difficulty. Attorney shall notify the 
Tax Office for approval before taking on extraordinary time and expense so as to make such 
application for additional fees necessary. 

 
11. The County shall pay to the Attorney a fixed fee of Four Hundred Fifty Dollars 

and 00/100  ($450.00) if a parcel is recalled before suit is filed or the standard per parcel fee as 
set forth in Paragraph 6 (as reduced by Paragraph 9 and/or increased by Paragraph 10, if 
applicable) if a parcel is recalled after suit is filed plus all incurred expenses, i.e., service fees, 
copy charges, postage, publication costs, filing fees, and the like, including but not limited to 
those set out in Paragraph 12, in the event of double listings, clerical, or other erroneous 
information provided by the Tax Collector to the Attorney, or legal, practical or administrative 



 6 

problems discovered by the Attorney  which result in legal impracticality or impossibility to 
effect proper collection remedies through foreclosure.   

 
12. Costs, expenses, and the like, to the extent that they are ascertainable as of the 

time this Agreement is executed, are as follows: a) copies at $ .25 per copy for those made at 
Attorney=s office and as incurred by Attorney as to copies made elsewhere, i.e. register of deeds, 
clerk of court, etc., with a minimum charge of $.25 per copy, b) locator, obituary and genealogy 
tracing charges at the per item amount charged by the vendor providing the service, and if no per 
unit schedule is provided by the vendor, then at $2.00 per inquiry made by Attorney, c) filing 
fees as set by statute, currently $150 per suit, $20 per notice filed, and $15 per alias & pluries 
summons issued d) publication costs as incurred by Attorney according to the publishers= then 
current rate, e) service fees by certified and regular mail as set by the United States Postal 
Service, currently $7.36 per envelope, plus digital mail service charge, f) service fees by North 
Carolina Sheriff as set by statute, currently $30 per defendant/lienholder, and g) service fees by 
out of state service providers as set by that state=s statute. 

 
 13. To ensure that the proper amount of delinquent taxes, interest, fees and costs are 
collected, the Attorney and the Tax Collector shall verify with one another the amount due at the 
time when, and if, the Taxpayer satisfies the tax lien after the complaint is filed but prior to 
foreclosure. 
 

14. All funds collected shall be paid to the Tax Collector and shall be paid in the form 
of cash, bank check or certified funds.  County shall immediately inform Attorney of the receipt 
of any such funds and the parcel to which they pertain.  Any part of any such funds that represent 
attorney fees, service fees, copy charges, postage, publication costs, filing fees, and the like, 
including but not limited to those set out in Paragraph 12, shall be remitted to Attorney as part of 
the next ensuing regular disbursement by the County Finance Office.  

 
15. Subject to the terms below, Attorney shall be the sole and exclusive special tax 

foreclosure attorney for the County during the term of this agreement.  County shall use its best 
efforts to assign all of its parcels with delinquent property taxes to Attorney pursuant to the terms 
hereof during the term of this Agreement.   

 
 16. Attorney's services hereunder are limited to the general prosecution of foreclosure 
actions to collect delinquent taxes assessed against real property located in the County, including 
title search services, document preparation, court appearances to obtain orders of foreclosure by 
default judgment, judgment on the pleadings, summary judgment, appearances as Commissioner 
to sell property at public sale, and negotiation with Taxpayers in settlement of such actions.  
Attorney's services hereunder do not include preparation of and response to discovery, 
preparation and court appearances for trial or appeal and the County shall provide all such legal 
services. The intent of this provision is to ensure that the overwhelming majority of Attorney’s 
time, talent and advanced expenses is involved in the prosecution of delinquent real property 
taxes on a volume basis, and that any case that involves an extraordinary amount of effort, such 
as in the preparation of a case for trial, that the County Attorney or his designee shall be 
responsible for the continued prosecution of such case. 

 



 7 

17. This agreement shall be for the period beginning December 1st, 2024 and 
terminating on June 30th, 2027.  After the initial term set out above, this Agreement shall renew 
itself automatically for two-year terms, unless either party shall give written notice no less than 
90 days prior to the end of the then current term.  Upon renewal, there will be a seven (7%) per 
cent increase on all attorney fees set out hereunder. The intent of this provision regarding 
increases in attorney fees is to allow a three and one-half per cent (3 ½ %) annual increase for 
each year of the contract, made upon each renewal of the term of the agreement. 

 
18. During the County’s fiscal year ending June 30th, 2025, and during each fiscal 

year thereafter during the term of this agreement, the total maximum services to be rendered 
and invoiced to County under this contract shall not exceed $6,500 unless otherwise 
authorized in writing (including email) by the County Manager.  This provision is intended to 
help facilitate the County’s legal budgeting and pre-audit requirements. 
 
COUNTY: 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      County Manager 
       
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
Clerk  
 
 
 
ATTORNEY: 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      President, Mark D. Bardill, P.C. 
 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act.   
 
__________________________________ 
County Finance Director 
 
O:\Washington County Tax Office\Administrative\WASHINGTON COUNTY TAX FORECLOSURE ATTORNEY AGREEMENT RMNDR FY 25 - FY 27.docx 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   3  
 
       DATE:     December 2, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
Additionally this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO: 4 
 
       DATE:     December 2, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Bob Steinburg CY25-26 Lobbyist Contract, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter will discuss the abovementioned subject. 
See attached. 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

   AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEMO Date:   November 24th, 2024       MEETING DATE: December 2nd, 2024        ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Lobbyist Update and Contract Renewal For 2025/2026 
DEPARTMENT: Board of Commissioners 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Draft Lobbyist Representation Agreement w/  The WolfeStein Group, LLC (2pgs) 
B- Draft Lobbyist Representation Agreement w/ Jones Street Consulting, LLC (2pgs) 

PURPOSE:  To receive an update on recent and potential upcoming lobbying activities at the general assembly, and to 
consider renewing the soon to expire lobbying contracts of The WolfeStein Group (Bob Steinburg) and Jones Street 
Consulting (Jackson Stancil). 
 
BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS:   

- 2023-2024 Along with other surrounding counties, Washington County entered into a two separate two-
year lobbying contracts with two separate lobbyists (former NC Sen. Bob Steinburg and Jackson Stancil) to work 
together in tandem to lobby on behalf of the County’s legislative interests at the General Assembly during its 
2003-2004 session.  The County Manager worked with the lobbyists on several occasions to advance the 
County’s interests particularly related to ongoing efforts to secure additional funding for school capital outlay 
projects, as well as to attempt to correct harmfully written legislation.   
 

- 2005-2006 A dedicated lobbying team would be well worth the direct financial costs described below if 
they are successful at securing additional funding, or blocking additional unfunded mandates, the combined 
values of which exceeded their direct contract costs.   

 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS:   

- Direct Cost:  $19,006 per agreement per year = $38,012 per year (with cancellation option after 1st year) 
- Indirect Benefit: Potential for substantial cost savings and/or additional revenues/returns on investment  

depending on contract performance, legislative funding availability, and policy outcomes. 
- Other:  A budget amendment of $19,006 would be required in the current FY25 budget to pay for the  

first half of both contracts as well as the applicable annual lobbyist registration fees. 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S):  
Based on the current political climate and dynamics facing Washington County over the next two years, and the 
relative small amount of the direct financial costs compared to the relative large scale of the indirect financial benefits, 
it is recommended that the lobbyist contracts be continued for an additional two years, with a cost/benefit evaluation to 
be conducted prior to the expiration of the option to cancel the contracts after their first year.  

 
1. VOTE: To renew the lobbying agreements with WolfeStein Group, LLC and Jones Street 

Consulting, LLC as presented, and to authorize the County Manager to execute the 
agreements with any modifications to be made in the County’s best interests by the County 
Attorney, once a budget transfer or amendment has been approved. 











 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO: 5 
 
       DATE:  December 2, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:      RESO 2024-036 to form Economic Development Council, Mr. Curtis 

Potter, CM/CA  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter will speak to the Board on the abovementioned subject. 
See attached. 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 2 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

   AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEMO Date:   November 25th, 2024       MEETING DATE: December 2nd, 2024        ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Formation of Economic Development Council 
DEPARTMENT: Economic Development 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Resolution Establishing an Economic Development Advisory Council (1-2pgs) 
B- Proposed Draft Bylaws of the Economic Development Council (5pgs) 

PURPOSE:  To discuss the potential formation of a new Economic Development Council consisting of a wide 
range of representatives who will collaborate with and provide feedback and input on the County’s Economic 
Development program. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

- “Sustainable Economic Growth & Development” was identified as one of the four primary goals of the 
Strategic Plan adopted earlier this year. 

o The first action item of that goal was to “Re-establish an Economic Development Committee or 
other similar body to meet regularly and begin developing and coordinating a more formalized 
county economic development program.” 

o The third action item of that goal was to: “Hold recurring collaborative discussions with municipal 
partners to identify and pursue mutually beneficial economic development strategies and 
opportunities including community development.” 

 
- Mr. Kelly Chesson (NCACC Strategic Management Coordinator) has been working with management on 

economic development matters including the development of the economic portion of the strategic plan and 
on managing specific action items within it, as well as obtaining additional general economic development 
knowledge, resources, and regional contacts in preparation for launching a more formal economic 
development program within the county.   
 

- Attached are a draft Resolution and Bylaws establishing a 19 member Economic Development Advisory 
Council (EDC) administered by a smaller and more flexible 5 member Executive Committee consisting of:  
    2-Commissioners, 1-County Manager, 1-Finance Officer, and 1-Economic Developer or other designee. 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 2 of 2 
 

o The Board of Commissioners retains full authority over the EDC, and may modify or disband it at 
any point in the future. 
 

o If the Bylaws are approved in early December, the Board could also make initial appointments of 
its own 2 members the same night, meaning the full Executive Committee would be formed to go 
ahead and begin its planning work for the administration of the larger full EDC sometime in early 
2025. Otherwise the 2 Commissioner members may be appointed any time after approving the 
formation and initial Bylaws of the EDC. 
 

o Board Appointments of the 5 private sector members could be made at the next regular meeting, 
which would also provide time for the listed partner agencies with independent appointment powers 
to be notified of the new EDC and to make their appointments to its membership. 
 

o Initial two-year terms are proposed to begin effective January 1st, 2025. 
 

o Staff expects to recommend that the EDC begin working under a quarterly regular meeting schedule 
to be more effectively set once most of the members are appointed to the full EDC. 

 
o The Manager plans to designate Mr. Kelly Chesson as the designee in place of an Economic 

Developer pending further review and discussions with the Board about potentially establishing a 
full-time Economic Development position. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT & ANALYSIS:  No immediate direct costs.   
Future indirect (lost opportunity) costs are anticipated to accumulate as existing staff devote time and resources 
toward administering the EDC and other economic development pursuits.  These costs are expected to be 
outweighed/justified in the long term by the potentially substantial gains to be received throughout the community 
from a successfully operating economic development program.   
 
In the short term, management anticipates offsetting these indirect (lost opportunity) costs by assigning most of 
the new administrative work to temporarily available staff including a NCACC SMS Project Coordinator and/or 
LFNC Fellow, while management conducts a cost/benefit analysis of proposing some combination of a possible 
departmental restructuring and/or additional personnel costs to hire a full time Economic Developer to carry out 
the additional administrative and departmental work on a permanent long term basis. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. Review and discuss any questions or concerns with the proposed Bylaws. 

 
2. VOTE: to approve the proposed Resolution and Bylaws to establish a new Economic Development 

Advisory Council.  



Page 1 of 1 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM 

COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

JASON SQUIRES 
ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 

acm@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

RESOLUTION 2024-036 
ESTABLISHING AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL 

WHEREAS, the Washington County Board of Commissioners approved a Strategic Plan on April 1st, 
2024, containing “Sustainable Economic Growth & Development” as one of its four key goals; and  

WHEREAS, the first and potentially most critical action item for that goal was to “Re-establish an 
Economic Development Committee or other similar body to meet regularly and begin developing and 
coordinating a more formalized county economic development program.”; and  

WHEREAS, county staff made an economic development program update to the Board at its 
November 4th, 2024, meeting and recommended that the Board consider the creation of a formal economic 
development advisory body; and  

WHEREAS, county staff have proposed the creation of a new Economic Development Advisory 
Council more particularly described within and to be governed by an instrument entitled certain “Bylaws of 
The Washington County Economic Development Advisory Council (EDC).  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: An Economic Development Advisory Council is 
hereby formed and authorized for the purposes described within, and to be governed by that instrument entitled 
“Bylaws of The Washington County Economic Development Advisory Council (EDC)” which is attached, 
incorporated by reference, and hereby approved.  

Chair, Board of Commissioners ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC  
Clerk to the Board 

Washington County Resolution 2024-036 

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:acm@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


Bylaws 
of 

The Washington County  

Economic Development Advisory Council (EDC) 
 

 

 

Article I: Purpose 

The purpose of the Washington County Economic Development Advisory Council (sometimes hereinafter 
referred to as the “EDC”) is to serve as an advisory body to the Board of County Commissioners related 
to economic development policies.   

The Council will also support the County’s efforts in promoting sustainable economic growth, attracting 
new businesses, retaining or expanding existing businesses, creating employment opportunities, and 
improving the overall quality of life for all residents. 

The Council will coordinate and utilize collaborative efforts to focus on developing a strategic vision and 
plan for economic development consistent with the County’s official mission/vision statements and its 
other relevant approved plans and policies, including without limitation any broader countywide strategic 
or land use development plans. 

 

  

Article II: Partners 

The EDC shall collaborate with local, regional and statewide partners, including without limitation: 

- Municipal governments 
- Travel & Tourism Authority  
- Local Chambers of Commerce 
- Regional economic development agencies 
- Educational institutions 
- State and federal economic development organizations 
- Planning Board 
- Public Utilities Departments 
- Community Development Partners 
- Private sector partners, including local businesses, financial institutions, and real estate 

agencies 

Partners will provide expertise, resources, and support to achieve the EDC’s objectives. 

 



 

Article III: Membership 

1. Composition: The EDC shall initially consist of 19 members, including representation from 
governmental and partner organizations as follows: 

 
- 5 Executive Committee Members consisting of the following: 

a. 2 County Commissioners (appointed by the Board of Commissioners) 
b. The County Economic Developer (or County Manager’s Econ Dev designee)  
c. The County Manager (or designee) 
d. The County Finance Officer (or designee) 

- 3  Municipal Government Members (one appointed by each county municipality) 
- 5 Private Sector Partner Members (appointed by the Board of Commissioners) 
- 1  TTA Member (the TTA Director or their designee) 
- 1  Local School System Member (the Superintendent’s designee) 
- 1  Community College Member (the College President’s designee) 
- 1  COG/Workforce Development Member (the COG Director’s designee) 
- 1 Planning Board Member (appointed by the Planning Board) 
- 1 The County Utilities Director or their designee 
- ? Other members as appointed from time to time by the Board of Commissioners 

 
2. Selection:  Members shall be appointed by the designated appointing authority, or otherwise by 

the County Board of Commissioners, based on their expertise, commitment to economic 
development, and alignment with the official strategic plan and/or goals officially approved by 
the County. 
 

3. Term:  Members will serve two-year terms, with a maximum of three consecutive terms, unless 
no other qualified or interested persons are available to fill a membership seat, or unless 
otherwise approved by the County Board of Commissioners. 
 

4. Vacancies:  Any vacancy shall be filled for the remainder of any applicable term by the 
designated appointing authority, or otherwise by the County Board of Commissioners.  

 

Article IV: Roles and Responsibilities 

1. Executive Committee:  The Executive Committee shall be a subset of the EDC, consisting of the 
members specifically identified above. 

a. Purpose: The Executive Committee will be responsible for: ensuring the efficient 
administration and governance of the EDC, overseeing the implementation of strategic 
economic development initiatives and projects, and may act on behalf of the full Council 
in urgent matters between scheduled meetings. 

b. Authority: The Executive Committee is vested with full authority to develop meeting 
agendas, coordinate subcommittee activities, make all time-sensitive EDC decisions, and 
address all issues requiring prompt EDC action.   



c. Mandate: The Executive Committee shall make regular reports to the EDC and Board of 
County Commissioners regarding its ongoing activities, and the status of any major 
ongoing economic development initiatives or specific projects. 

d. Good Faith: In exercising its authority, the Executive Committee shall exercise good 
faith efforts to use sound discretion and to defer and delay using its unilateral decision 
making authority (especially with respect to major non-time-sensitive planning, policy 
making, or project decisions) until after a reasonable opportunity arises to discuss and 
receive relevant input on such matters from the full EDC.  The Executive Committee 
shall also take pains to ensure that any public recommendations or major decisions made 
unilaterally on behalf of the EDC without prior EDC discussion or endorsement are 
designated as such, and are not misrepresented as recommendations or decisions of the 
full EDC. 

2. Chairperson:  The Chairperson shall lead all EDC meetings, set agendas, and represent the body 
in public forums. The Chairperson shall be elected by the EDC members for a one-year term for 
up to three successive terms. 

3. Vice Chairperson:  The Vice-Chairperson shall assist the Chairperson, assume leadership 
responsibilities in the Chairperson’s absence. The Vice-Chairperson shall be elected by the EDC 
members for a one-year term for up to three successive terms. 

4. Secretary:  The Secretary shall keep accurate records of both EDC and Executive Committee 
meetings, distribute meeting minutes, and handle committee correspondence. The Secretary shall 
be appointed by the County Manager or their designee. 

5. Members:  Members are expected to actively participate in meetings, contribute ideas and 
expertise, engage with stakeholders, and participate in assigned subcommittees or project groups 
as necessary.  Failure to attend two or more successive meetings without good cause shown in the 
discretion of the Executive Committee shall be considered grounds for removal by the Executive 
Committee. 

6. Subcommittees:  The EDC may form subcommittees focused on specific areas or projects, such 
as workforce development, infrastructure planning, small business support, downtown 
revitalization, and specific industry sectors. Each subcommittee will report progress to the 
Executive Committee, which will then relay updates to the full EDC. 

 

Article V: Expectations and Standards of Conduct 

1. Meeting Attendance:  Members are expected to attend at least 75% of all scheduled meetings 
annually. Regular attendance is critical to maintain consistency and effectiveness of the EDC and 
economic development progress within the county. 

2. Participation:  Members should actively contribute ideas, complete assigned tasks, and engage 
with stakeholders. Each member is expected to support the committee’s purpose and mission 
professionally and respectfully. 

3. Open Meetings:  Full official EDC meetings shall be considered and treated as meetings of a 
“public body” pursuant to applicable state law.  Executive Committee meetings shall not be 
considered as an official meeting of a public body.  



4. Conflicts of Interest:  Members must disclose any conflicts of interest regarding matters before 
the EDC. Members with conflicts must recuse themselves from discussions and decisions in 
which they have a financial or personal interest. 

 

Article VI: Performance Standards 

To assess the effectiveness of the EDC, the following performance standards shall be established and 
reviewed annually: 

1. Goal Achievement:  The EDC will set measurable economic development goals each year (e.g., 
new businesses attracted, job creation targets). Progress will be documented and reviewed by the 
County Board of Commissioners. 

2. Stakeholder Engagement:  The EDC shall maintain active relationships with key stakeholders 
and ensure consistent communication with partner organizations. 

3. Project Execution:  The EDC must successfully initiate and complete any fully funded economic 
development project within a reasonably swift period of time.  As projects arise, specific 
performance measures will be discussed, established, and tracked to monitor the overall 
efficiency and effectiveness of project execution and delivery.  The purpose of such measures 
shall be non-punitive but are intended rather to aide in pre-planning, ongoing monitoring, and 
strategic after-action reviews and improvements to recurring project cycles. 

4. Community Impact:  The EDC will assess its impact on job creation, increased investment, and 
improvements in community infrastructure or other similar resources and report its relevant 
findings and conclusions to the Board of County Commissioners annually. 

 

Article VII: Other Terms and Conditions 

1. Member Accountability:  Members who fail to meet attendance requirements or engage in 
disruptive behavior may receive a warning from the Chairperson. Continued issues may result in 
the member’s removal by a majority vote of the EDC or Executive Committee. 

2. Conflict of Interest Violations:  Member who fail to disclose a conflict of interest may be 
subject to disciplinary action, including removal by a majority vote of the EDC or Executive 
Committee. 

3. Ethical Violations:  Any member discovered to be engaging in unethical or illegal activity shall 
be reported immediately to the County Manager, may be removed immediately by the Executive 
Committee, and may be subject to further legal action if appropriate. 

4. Performance Shortfalls:  If the EDC fails to meet its performance standards for two consecutive 
years, a review will be conducted by the County Manager and reported to the EDC and Board of 
County Commissioners. The review may result in restructuring, leadership changes, or 
dissolution of the committee if deemed necessary.  If practicable, the County Board of 
Commissioners shall solicit and consider the input of the EDC prior to making any major 
substantive changes following any such review. 



5. Retention of Authority:  The Board of County Commissioners retains its full authority over the
EDC which is formed by the Board strictly as an advisory body, including the Board’s right to
suspend, modify, or dissolve these Bylaws or the EDC itself at any time and without prior notice
by majority vote of the Board.

6. Amendment:  These bylaws may only be amended by the Board of County Commissioners
which may make such amendments unilaterally at any time and without notice.  The EDC may
recommend amendments from time to time by a two-thirds majority vote of the EDC membership
present at any EDC meeting where such matter is properly considered.  Before considering any
such matter, all EDC members shall be provided at least 30 days prior notice to such a meeting
including a clear statement about the intent to vote on proposing a bylaw amendment, and
including a copy of the proposed amendment itself.

ADOPTED this ___ day of __________2024 by the Washington County Board of 
Commissioners. 

____________________________________

  Chair, County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: ________________________________ 

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
Clerk to the Board 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     December 2, 2024 
 
ITEM:     Skinnersville Civic Center Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Members of the Skinnersville Civic Center would  like to speak to the Commissioners.   
See attached. 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 4 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

   AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEMO Date:   November 26th, 2024       MEETING DATE: December 2nd, 2024        ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Skinnersville Civic Center, Inc. Request for Land 
DEPARTMENT: CMO 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Survey for Washington County & Skinnersville Civic Center, Inc.  Revised 11/15/2024 (1pg) 
B- SCC letter to Board dated 2/20/23 (6pgs) 

PURPOSE:  To discuss and consider approval of the Skinnersville Civic Center, Inc. (SCC) request to transfer 
about 3.55 additional acres of county owned real property located at the Pea Ridge Recreational Area (NCPIN 
7830746763) to the SCC for its use in providing for more realistic setbacks, renovation/expansion activities, and 
future growth and development as a community center. 
 
BACKGROUND & STAFF ANALYSIS:  The SCC owns and operates a community building commonly known 
as the Skinnersville Civic Center which is believed to be eligible for inclusion as a state historical property.  The 
building is situated on a very small lot consisting of approximately 0.32 acres shown as Lots C1 and C2 in the 
attached survey dated April 18, 2024 (revised November 15, 2024) by Hood Richardson, P.A. and for informational 
purposes known as NCPIN 7830747435.   
 
 The SCC building is used for a wide variety of community events and activities including without limitation 
arts, crafts, and various educational and economic improvement classes.  Over the years the building has served as 
a polling station and a wide variety of other purposes to serve the public interests of the Skinnersville community 
at large. 

 
The Skinnersville Civic Center mission statement reads as follows: “to provide opportunities for social, 

educational, health, and moral development with a special emphasis on this disadvantaged community in a high 
poverty and rural neighborhood within Washington County.  We, the community are committed to enhancing, 
inspiring, supporting, and providing opportunities for our community center to flourish.  Our goal is to improve 
community involvement, build a stronger sense of self-worth, social skills, and the ability to work as a part of a 
team by employing best modeling and community involvement skills.” 

 
A wide variety of County staff have worked extensively with the SCC for over two years starting when a 

Rural Transformation Grant (RTG) was initially targeted by both the County and SCC in the fall of 2022.   

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
ANN C. KEYES, CHAIR 

CAROL V. PHELPS, VICE-CHAIR  

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL 

JULIUS WALKER, JR. 

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER, ICMA-CM  

  COUNTY MANAGER & COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org  

 
JASON SQUIRES 

ASSISTANT COUNTY MANAGER 
acm@washconc.org 

 
CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 

FINANCE OFFICER 
mdixon@washconc.org 

 
      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 

CLERK TO THE BOARD 
jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 2 of 4 
 

 
The SCC submitted the attached letter dated February 20th, 2023 requesting certain land be transferred back 

to the SCC from the County to help facilitate the SCC’s current and future building maintenance and expansion 
projects as well as to potentially help the SCC independently apply for and better compete to receive additional 
grant funding from other sources for its ongoing development and mission.  The requested land equates to about 
3.55 acres.   

 
Included in that letter are references to some historical context which is helpful to understand as follows: 
 
- In 1964 Roughton conveyed 2 tracts of land to the SCC.  The 1st Tract consisted of about 16 acres and 

was the original property from which the County’s current recreational property (NCPIN 7830746763) 
and the SCC’s current property (NCPIN 7830747435 originated.  This deed contained a 50 year Right 
of Reverter that the property be used for community purposes and betterment. 
 

- In 1978 the SCC conveyed Tract 1 to Washington County except for the small 0.32 acres shown as 
Lots C1 and C2 in the attached survey which the SCC retained and still owns, and subject to the Right 
of Reverter. 
 

- In 1979 Roughton and the SCC reconveyed Tract 1 except for the small 0.32 acres shown as Lots C1 
and C2 in the attached survey which the SCC retained and still owns, to the County along with any 
interests they previously held in the Right of Reverter thereby effectively destroying it. 

During the fall of 2022 County staff determined and confirmed that the SCC was not actually eligible to 
apply for the RTG (because it only permitted funds to be used on publicly owned infrastructure) but staff continued 
to meet with and discuss possible mutually beneficial ways for the County to apply for and use some of the RTG 
funds to upgrade the county owned recreational property which surrounds the SCC in a way that would accomplish 
some of their original RTG goals.  An RTG application was approved by the Board and submitted in the summer 
of 2023, but ultimately was not awarded. 

 
Since the fall of 2023 County staff has continued to work with the SCC to discuss their land transfer request 

and to try to develop the terms of a potential compromise solution that could be recommended to the Board to 
transfer some, but not all, of the requested property to the SCC without monetary consideration, but subject to 
certain legally required restrictive covenants.   

 
The County commissioned and paid for the attached survey which has been revised multiple times at the 

SCC’s request during this process, and shows their 0.32 acres as Lots C1 and C2.  The existing SCC building does 
not have adequate side setbacks from the county owned property surrounding it which includes Lot B and D, and 
staff agree the SCC need additional property to expand or even to adequately maintain the existing SCC building.   

 
Despite repeated efforts to reach a compromise solution in which the County would convey an additional 

0.88 acres (Lots B and D) to the SCC, those efforts appear to have stalled primarily over the SCC’s continuing 
demand to also have the County convey Lot A (another 2.67 acres) to the SCC in addition to Lots B and D. 

 
It appears some SCC members or affiliated parties believe the surrounding county property which they are 

requesting be transferred back to the SCC (including specifically but without limitation Lot A shown on the survey) 
was conveyed to the County in error, or was otherwise somehow not properly conveyed and rightfully still belongs 
to the SCC rather than the County.  Recent communications indicate that the SCC intends to seek an investigation 
into the circumstances surrounding the property transfer during the 1970s.  

 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 3 of 4 
 

Staff continues to recommend the Board it consider conveying only Lots B and D to the SCC (to combine 
with Lot C1 and C2 which the SCC already owns) in exchange for the SCC conveying Lot C2 to the County, and 
making the transferred property subject to certain restrictive covenants which the County would be legally required 
to attach if the property is conveyed to a nonprofit without monetary consideration.  In substance those covenants 
would permanently require the SCC to use the transferred property for the same type of public purposes for which 
the County could use it, and would be substantially similar to the covenants placed on the recreational property 
purchased several years ago from the County by Picosin Innovative Charter in Creswell, NC.  

 
- This would increase the SCC property from 0.32 acres to 1.18 acres providing adequate side setbacks 

to the actual building and room for reasonable expansion, and would also straighten the existing 
property boundary between the parties respective parcels running along an existing ditch as shown in 
the survey.   

 
- Staff would also recommend the County retain ownership of Lot A consisting of 2.67 acres to the west 

of the SCC property for the foreseeable future based on several factors including: 
 

o Most of Parcel A lies within the 500-year flood plane (see survey), and there is a legitimate 
flood resiliency/hazard mitigation planning interest in limiting its further development.   
 

o Lot A’s location is immediately adjacent to a critical transportation infrastructure crossroad 
located in the very heart of the areas of Washington County projected and anticipated to 
develop fastest in terms of future residential growth.  Maintaining control over this property 
may prove valuable to future utility, recreation, or other public purposes.  Not doing so may 
jeopardize or impact in unforeseen ways the continuing and future use of both this specific Lot 
A in question, as well as the larger tract of recreational property of which it is a part situated to 
the north of the ditch shown within the attached survey. 
 
 Staff anticipates recommending Lot A be included as part of an in-kind match to be 

counted toward a future PARTF grant application.  This will require permanently 
restricting the future development of this Lot except for limited recreational purposes.  
This use of the property would address the first points above while still keeping the use 
of this Lot consistent with its originally intended recreational purposes. 

 
o The County could still potentially permit the SCC to make certain uses of Lot A through 

easements or licenses (even if it is used in a PARTF project) if deemed necessary and desirable 
by the Board to aide the SCC in accomplishing its objectives. 

 
 Staff is uncertain exactly what the SCC’s objectives are, particularly with respect to 

Lot A but believes the SCC does have specific objectives and plans for Lot A.  Despite 
requests for the SCC to outline those plans in writing so they can be evaluated as a 
potential justification for transferring Lot A, no such plans have been received for 
further discussion or review beyond verbally describing the possibility of building an 
outdoor covered shelter of some kind.   
 

 Staff believes the current recommendation to transfer only Lots B and D adequately 
addresses the SCC’s stated desire to increase their parking area, potentially expand 
their existing building’s footprint, and construct an outdoor shelter for 
community/membership use.   



Agenda Item Memo  Page 4 of 4 
 

 
 If an outdoor shelter is the goal for Lot A’s development, staff would advise that the 

County should consider developing the shelter itself, for potential use by both the SCC 
and larger public as part of the larger recreational property owned by the County.  This 
is based on staff receiving feedback during recent budget years to pursue the potential 
construction of additional recreational shelters throughout the county.  It would also 
accomplish that goal in a manner that would take into fuller consideration some of the 
concerns outlined above.  

Staff believes that if at some point in the future, the potential plans of the SCC expand beyond the 
recommended footprint of the property recommended to be conveyed at this time, the County could consider an 
additional transfer or an easement depending upon the circumstances.  Regardless staff also recommends the County 
continue in perpetuity to consider in good faith, mutually beneficial ways to cooperate in the future development of 
any county owned property immediately adjacent to the SCC property.      
 
 
RELEVANT AUTHORITY:  NCGS § 160A-279(a) Sale of property to entities carrying out a public 
purpose; procedure. provides in relevant part: “(a) Whenever a city or county is authorized to appropriate funds 
to any public or private entity which carries out a public purpose, the city or county may, in lieu of or in addition 
to the appropriation of funds, convey by private sale to such an entity any real or personal property which it 
owns…” “provided that no such conveyance may be made to a for-profit corporation. The city or county shall 
attach to any such conveyance covenants or conditions which assure that the property will be put to a public use 
by the recipient entity. The procedural provisions of G.S. 160A-267 shall apply.”…  
 

§ 160A-267.  Private sale. provides in relevant part: “When the council proposes to dispose of property 
by private sale, it shall at a regular council meeting adopt a resolution or order authorizing an appropriate city 
official to dispose of the property by private sale at a negotiated price. The resolution or order shall identify the 
property to be sold and may, but need not, specify a minimum price. A notice summarizing the contents of the 
resolution or order shall be published once after its adoption, and no sale shall be consummated thereunder until 
10 days after its publication.” 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS:   

- Presently the County has invested substantial indirect/lost opportunity costs via staff time incurred on this 
project and $1,950 for surveying. If approved, the County would be investing further resources to 
facilitate a deed exchange and would lose the value of at least 0.88 acres without monetary consideration. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 

1. Thoroughly review the background/staff analysis section of this Memo including all attachments. 

2. Hear any SCC representatives regarding their ongoing concerns and requests. 

3. Consult with legal counsel regarding any legal questions or concerns in closed session. 

4. Direct staff how to proceed or respond to the SCC with respect to answering any specific concerns 

or requests made by the SCC. 

















 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO: 7 
 
       DATE:  December 2, 2024 
 
 
ITEM:      Regional Detention Center Study, Mr. Jason Squires, ACM  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter will speak to the Board on the abovementioned subject. 
See attached. 
 
Chowan County has asked Gates and Washington to join in commissioning a study (attached) to 
analyze the future projected needs and cost/benefits of a regional Chowan, Gates, Washington 
Detention Center.  If we choose to participate Washington County’s estimated initial cost in the 
study (pro-rated by population) would be around $11,625.   
 
The Sheriff attended an initial project discussion meeting and after due consideration believes 
that a regional detention center is not a necessity at this time, and will most likely be cost 
prohibitive.  He does not support moving forward with the study. 
 
From a management analysis standpoint, the primary advantage of utilizing a regional jail would 
be potential shared cost savings derived from centralizing staffing and feeding plans to reduce 
unnecessary competition between the current individual jails for staff.  The Washington County 
detention center perpetually faces short staffing challenges.  The primary risk in not regionalizing 
would be if we became unable to recruit sufficient staff to actually keep our detention center 
open.  However, management concurs that a regional detention center model will likely prove and 
be considered cost prohibitive in the short term based on and compared with current and 
historical detention center expenses.  It is the longer term needs and risks that a regional detention 
center and study to evaluate it would more likely help us to better understand and plan for. 
 
If the study is structured to provide useable projection data for each county, it could be potentially 
useful to our own longer term jail/detention planning processes even if we do not decide to 
participate in this particular regional jail opportunity.  That would become even more important if 
any other long range courthouse capital project plans develop in the upcoming CIP or in future 
CIPs.   
 
Recommendation:  Discuss this request and potential participation in the study and direct staff 
how to proceed. 



 

 

   
 
 
 
 
September 27, 2024 
 
 
RE: Chowan, Gates, and Washington County Detention Center  
 Possible Regional Jail Study Agreement.  
 
 
 
 
Mr. Kevin Howard, Mr. Scott Sauer, and Mr. Curtis Potter, 
 
 
Gentleman,  
 
 
Moseley Architects is pleased to offer this Agreement for Services with Chowan 
Gates, and Washington counties for the Needs Assessment Study for to assist 
with the possibility of forming a regional jail., referred to hereinafter as the 
“Project”. Our services shall be to provide the following services:  
 

1. Forecast inmate population and associated space needs through 
2045. 

 
2. Identify long term space needs and solutions. 

 
3. Provide conceptual design for option. 

 
4. Provide opinion of probable cost.  

 
5. Work with an Advisory Stakeholders Group. 

 
6. Present the findings to the Board of Commissioners. 

 
7. Provide a written report documenting the study findings, options to 

address needs, and recommendations for next steps.  
 
Compensation for these services shall be the lump sum of Thirty-Eight 
Thousand, Seven Hundred Fifty and 00/100 Dollars. ($38,750.00)  
 
For other services not defined herein, compensation shall be as mutually 
agreed by Moseley Architects and the listed 3 counties, and shall be computed 
using the attached Schedule of Hourly Billing Rates, which is an integral part of 
this Agreement.  
 
If this Agreement for Services is acceptable, please indicate your acceptance of 
and agreement to its terms and your authorization to proceed by signing below 
and returning one fully executed original for our files.  
 



RE:  Chowan, Gates, and Washington County Detention Center  
 Possible Regional Jail Study Agreement 
Mr. Kevin Howard, Mr. Scott Sauer, and Mr. Curtis Potter 
Page 2 September 27, 2024 

 
 
Thank you for this opportunity to be of service.  Please let me know if you have 
any questions.  
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
 
Todd B. Davis, CJE, NCCE 
Vice President 
 
  Accepted and Agreed:   
 
  By:    
 
  Printed Name and Title:    
 
  Date:    
 
 
pte 
 
Attachments: 
Schedule of Hourly Billing Rates 
Terms and Conditions of Agreement for Services 
 



 

 

 
 

SCHEDULE OF HOURLY BILLING RATES - CALENDAR YEAR 2024 
 

Principals $256 
  
Architects  

Senior Project Manager $237 
Project Manager $186 
Architect $178 
Project Designer $118 
  

Security and Detention Design  
Security Design Specialist $224 
  

Moseley Engineering Director $256 
  

Moseley Mechanical/Electrical/Plumbing/Engineering  
Senior Engineer $208 
Engineer/Designer $170 
Intern Technician $118 

  
Moseley Structural Engineering  

Senior Engineer $186 
Engineer/Designer $155 
Intern Technician $118 
  

Moseley Interior Design  
Interior Design Director $208 
Senior Interior Designer $139 
Project Interior Designer $118 
  

Corrections Planner $256  
 

Criminal Justice Consultant $202 
 

Construction Administration  
Construction Administrator $178 

  
Specification Writer $178 
  
Sustainability Planning  

Sustainability Planning Director $208 
Energy Analyst $174 
Sustainability Coordinator $155 
  

Administrative          $82 
 

 
Rates are subject to change on January 1 of each year. 

 



 

 

 
 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 
 
These Terms and Conditions are an integral part of the Agreement for Services (“Agreement”) between Moseley Architects 
(“Architect”) and its client (“Owner”). In the event of a conflict between the Agreement and these Terms and Conditions, the 
Agreement shall govern. Architect’s services, Instruments of Service, and work product are intended for the sole use and 
benefit of Owner and are not intended to create any third-party rights or benefits or for any use by any other person or entity or 
for any other purpose.  Architect’s Services shall be limited to those expressly set forth in this Agreement. Architect shall have 
no other obligations or responsibilities for the Project except as agreed to in writing. 
 
1. COORDINATION WITH THE OWNER 
The Architect shall confer with the Owner to coordinate its services with the Owner.  The Architect shall have the benefit of the 
Owner’s experience and knowledge of its facilities, requirements, and current policies and standards applicable to the Project.  
To implement this coordination, the Owner shall provide to the Architect at no cost all existing information relevant to the Project 
and available to the Owner. 
 
2. OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Owner shall provide full information in a timely manner regarding its requirements for and limitations on the Project, and the 
Architect shall be entitled to rely on such information.  The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner 
becomes aware of any fault or defect in the Architect’s services, including any errors, omissions or inconsistencies in any 
documents prepared by the Architect. 
 
3. COMPENSATION 
For and in consideration of the services to be rendered by the Architect, the Owner shall pay and the Architect shall receive the 
compensation set forth in the Agreement.  Unless otherwise specified, compensation shall be paid to the Architect on a monthly 
basis in accordance with monthly billing statements based upon the progress of services performed and reimbursable expenses 
(if applicable) incurred during that month. Monthly compensation shall be due and payable upon receipt of the billing statement 
by the Owner.  Any payments not made within sixty (60) days on statements rendered shall be subject to a charge for interest 
at the maximum legal rate of interest, beginning sixty (60) days after the date of the statement, and failure to make any payments 
when due shall entitle the Architect to suspend services.  The Architect’s final payment is due and payable upon completion of 
the Architect’s services. 
 
The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect’s compensation to impose a penalty of liquidated damages on the 
Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in the construction/Work unless the 
Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding and final dispute resolution proceeding. 
 
4. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND RECORDS 
It is understood that the Architect is preparing documents for this specific Project and use; therefore, all documents, including 
original drawings, estimates, specifications, field notes, reports and data are and remain the property of the Architect as 
Instruments of Service.  The Owner may obtain, upon payment of compensation due the Architect, and upon performance of all 
the Owner’s obligations under this Agreement, reproducible and/or electronic copies for drawings and other documents in 
consideration of which it is mutually agreed that the Owner will use them solely in conjunction with the Project, and shall not use 
or authorize their use on other projects or by others, except by separate written agreement with the Architect. 
 
Under no circumstances shall the transfer of ownership of the Drawings, Specifications, electronic data or other Instruments of 
Service be deemed to be a sale by the Architect, and the Architect makes no warranties, express or implied, of merchantability 
or of fitness for a particular purpose. 
 
The Architect shall retain all pertinent records relating to the services performed hereunder for a period of seven years after 
completion thereof.  The Owner shall have access to such records at all reasonable times during such period as may be required 
for audit of reimbursable expenses. 
 
5. PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by architects practicing 
in the same manner or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. 
 
The Architect’s Services shall be limited to those expressly set forth in this Agreement. The Architect makes no warranties, either 
express or implied, with respect to services provided under this Agreement.  The Architect shall have no other obligations or 
responsibilities for the Project except as agreed to in writing. 
 



Terms and Conditions of Agreement for Services  Page 2 

The Architect shall provide the following insurance: Worker’s Compensation – Statutory; Commercial General Liability – Bodily 
Injury - $100,000; Property Damage - $100,000; Comprehensive Automobile Liability - Bodily Injury - $100,000; and Property 
Damage - $100,000; Professional Liability - $250,000 per claim and $500,000 annual aggregate on a claims-made basis.  To 
the fullest extent permitted by law, the Architect shall cause the primary and excess or umbrella polices for Commercial General 
Liability and Automobile Liability to include the Owner as an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the 
Architect’s negligent acts or omissions. The additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the 
Owner’s insurance policies and shall apply to both ongoing and completed operations. Certificates of insurance, on an ACORD 
form, shall be furnished to the Owner upon request.  
 
Upon written request of the Owner, the Architect will provide additional insurance, if available, including increased coverage 
and/or limits, and the Owner will pay the Architect a mutually agreed amount for the increased coverage.  The Architect‘s liability 
to the Owner for any indemnity or any damages arising in any way out of the performance of this Agreement is limited to the 
insurance coverages and amounts stated herein.  The Architect shall not be liable to the Owner for any indirect, special or 
consequential loss or damage arising out of the performance or services hereunder including, but not limited to loss of use, loss 
of profit, or business interruption whether caused by the negligence of the Architect or otherwise. 
 
In performance of its services, the Architect shall exercise the standard of care ordinarily exercised by members of its profession 
in the same locale and who are performing their services under the same conditions.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create a 
contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the Owner or the Architect. 
Neither the Architect nor the Architect's consultants will offer or have offered any fiduciary service to the Owner and no fiduciary 
responsibility shall be owed to the Owner by either the Architect or the Architect's consultants as a result of the Owner and 
Architect entering into this Agreement. 
6. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between them related to the 
Agreement by mediation, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be in accordance with the Construction 
Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association currently in effect.  Request for mediation shall be filed in 
writing with the other party to this Agreement and with the mediator as mutually agreed.  The request may be made concurrently 
with the filing of a legal or equitable proceeding, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of sixty (60) days from the 
date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. 
 
The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s 
termination of this Agreement. 
 
7. TERMINATION; SUSPENSION OF WORK 
The Owner may, at its discretion, terminate the Project or indefinitely suspend the Project under this Agreement by giving the 
Architect seven-day written notice.  In such event, the Owner shall assume all obligations, commitments and claims that the 
Architect may have in good faith undertaken or incurred in connection with the Project.  The Architect shall be equitably paid for 
services rendered prior to effective termination notice date. 
 
8. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
The Owner and the Architect each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other 
party to the Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns of such other party, in respect 
to all covenants of the Agreement.  Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in the 
Agreement without the written consent of the other, and agree that the Agreement represents the entire understanding of the 
Owner and the Architect and cannot be changed, added to, or modified and any way except in writing, signed by both the Owner 
and the Architect.   
 
9. NON DISCRIMINATION 
The Architect will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, or 
national origin, except where religion, sex, or national origin is a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to 
the normal operation of the Architect.  The Architect agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants 
for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Architect shall state in all solicitations 
or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Architect that the Architect is an equal opportunity employer.  
 
 
10. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
During the performance of services provided under this Agreement, the Architect agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for 
the Architect’s employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement 
notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance 
or marijuana is prohibited in the Architect’s workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for 



Terms and Conditions of Agreement for Services  Page 3 

violations of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Architect 
that the Architect maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses (substituting the 
consultant or vendor for the Architect as the obligated party) in every subcontract or purchase order of over $10,000, so that the 
provisions will be binding upon each consultant or vendor. 
 
For the purposes of this paragraph, “drug-free workplace” means a site for the performance of work done by the Architect in 
connection with this Agreement, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, 
distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of such services. 
 
11. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  
 
This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and shall be effective when all the Parties have signed a 
counterpart hereof.  Electronic transmission of original signatures in .pdf or similar format are as final and binding as pen and 
ink originals executed and exchanged in the presence of all Parties. 
 

END OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:     December 2, 2025 
 
ITEM:        PK12 Project & Funding Agreement/Lease Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, 

CM/CA  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Potter will discuss the abovementioned subject. 
See attached. 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
   
       DATE:     December 2, 2024 
 
ITEM: Finance Officer’s Report and Budget Transfers/Budget Amendments 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will be presenting Budget Amendments/Budget 
Transfers and asking for the Board’s approval/disapproval.  Ms. Dixon will then discuss 
her financial report.  
 

 
 



























































































































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  10 
 
       DATE:     December 2, 2024 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, County Manager/County 

Attorney or Clerk 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 Department Head Reports for November 2024 

See attached. 
 
 Department Head Statistical Reports for November 2024 

See attached. 
 

 DSS Annual Report for the Community Child Protection Team (CCPT) 
See attached.  DSS is required to submit this report to the Commissioners.  This is 
for info only.   No budget impact and no action to be taken. See attached. 

 
 MTW Annual Report for the Child Fatality Protection Team (CFPT). 

See attached.  MTW is required to submit this report to the Commissioners.  This 
is for info only.   No budget impact and no action to be taken.  See attached. 
 
 

 
 



 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES 

PO Box 10 ~ 209 E Main Street 
Plymouth, NC   27962 
Phone {252} 793-4041 
Fax (252} 793-3195 

 
 
 

November 15, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
To:   Washington County Board of County Commissioners 

 
As required by North Carolina law, the attached report is submitted for the information of the 
Washington County Commissioners by the Community Child Protection Team.  The purpose of 
CCPT is to identify and address gaps or deficiencies in services and resources for children and 
families, as well as build public awareness through multiple resources, including providing our 
findings and concerns for your information via this annual report. 
 
We are proud of what the Washington County Community Child Protection Team has 
accomplished over the years and the leadership that the teams provide to their local communities and 
to the development of state policy.  
 
If the Commissioners have questions concerning the operations of this team or issues related to 
Child Protection in our county, please let me know. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
 

Anne Hathaway 
Chairman, CCPT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WASHINGTON COUNTY 
COMMUNITY CHILD PROTECTION TEAM (CCPT) 

 
ANNUAL REPORT TO THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Calendar Year 2023    
 
History of CCPT 

The Community Child Protection Team (CCPT) was established by law (General Statue 7B-
1406) in May of 1991 as a means for the state and local communities to form a partnership to 
strengthen child protection.  This was a result of revenue shortfalls on both the state and local 
levels, making it difficult to fund the necessary number of social workers needed to investigate 
abuse/neglect reports and provide needed ongoing services for families.   The CCPT is an 
interdisciplinary group of community representatives who meet regularly to promote a 
community-wide approach to the problem of child abuse and neglect. Although the activities are 
usually coordinated by the Department of Social Services, the CCPT is not a Department of 
Social Services (DSS) team, but a county team.  The CCPT may not encompass a geographic nor 
governmental area larger than one county.  
 
Purpose of CCPT 
The Community Child Protection Team (CCPT) reviews are designed to assist DSS and families 
in protecting children by identifying barriers in services and collaborating on strategies to 
remedy the situation.   The outcome of a CCPT review must result in identification of a gap in 
services, a need for additional services or resources needed in the community or a collaborative 
recommendation of action that may remove a risk situation for a child.  Review of cases also 
generate a needs list. The cases reviewed may bring to the surface underlying problems that 
impact the entire community rather than focusing on the families in the DSS system.  Some of 
these situations may be financial barriers, transportation needs, failed communication systems 
between resources, procedural barriers and or inadequate services. 
 
Washington County opted to combine the CFPT with the existing CCPT, as did the majority of 
counties in North Carolina.  We meet in conjunction with the Washington County Child Fatality 
Prevention Team (CFPT), which is a program administered through the Washington County 
Health Department.  The combined CCPT/CFPT reviews child protective services cases 
presented by DSS or at the request of team members; and all child fatalities of county resident 
children under the age of 18 that occurred in the previous year. Through the review of records of 
agencies represented, the team identifies gaps in services and searches for ways to prevent future 
child abuse, neglect, and fatalities. 
 
 
Membership 
The CCPT shall consist of representatives of public and nonpublic agencies in the community 
that provide services to children and their families and other individuals who represent the 
diversity of the community. Membership is mandated by law and includes: 
 
1. The county director of social services and a member of the director's staff; 



2. A local law enforcement officer; 
3. An attorney from the district attorney's office, appointed by the district attorney; 
4. The executive director of a local community action agency, Department Health and Human 
Services, or the executive director's designee; 
5. The superintendent of each local school administrative unit located in the county, or the 
superintendent's designee; 
6. A member of the county board of social services, appointed by the chair of that board;  
7. A local mental health professional, appointed by the director of the area; 
8. The local guardian ad litem coordinator, or the coordinator's designee; 
9. The director of the department of public health; and 
10. A local health care provider, appointed by the local board of public health. 
 
The board of county commissioners may appoint a maximum of five additional members to 
represent various county agencies or the community at large to serve on any local team. Team 
members appointed by the board of county commissioners should represent the diversity of the 
community. This is an opportunity for teams to involve all aspects of the community that impact 
children or have the potential to impact children. 
 
Selection of Cases for Review 
Categories of cases reviewed by the team are to be based on local need, but may include one or 
more of the following groups of children noted in the literature to be at higher risk of subsequent 
injury or death as a result of child abuse, neglect, or dependency: 
 
A. Substantiated cases of abuse, including sexual abuse. 
  
B. Reports of neglect of a child, especially when made by a medical provider, specifically reports 
of maltreatment involving dehydration, bruises, broken bones, positive tests for controlled 
substances, etc. 
 
C. Cases in which the department has “Substantiated” or found the family to be “In Need of 
Services”. 
 
D. Families that have been reported several times over a short span of time and the reports were 
screened out or other cases at the request of a team member, including children receiving any 
child welfare services, cases known to team members where there are indications that child has 
been affected by a deficiency in a community system or resource. 
 
E. Child fatalities. 
 
 
Washington County - CCPT reviews 
Last year, Washington County CCPT reviewed 6 cases that involved child abuse, neglect and/or 
dependency.  Several cases involved past history with Child Protective Services.  Many of the 
cases involved domestic violence, lack of appropriate parenting, sexual abuse of one or more 
children, mental health issues of both the parents and the children, physical health issues of the 
children, and substance abuse issues by the parents. Many of the parents of these children were 



in foster care themselves.  There are limited services, especially regarding mental health 
facilities, available to the families of Washington County which could help alleviate some of 
these issues. Most of the families reviewed had long histories with Child Protective Services.    
 
Washington County CCPT/CFPT Community Outreach Success - Activities and 
Accomplishments 

• The team met 3 times in 2023.   
• In the month of April there was a Kids fest held at Tyrrell House in Columbia.  Also, in 

April, posters and banners were hung around town in honor of Child Abuse Awareness 
month in an effort to remind the community of their responsibility to call Social Services 
if they suspect abuse. 

• In the month of June, Smart Start started a class called “Circle of Parents” as an 
opportunity for parents to get together and support one another.  Also, in June, an Infant 
Mortality grant was approved and the health department was able to provide parents with 
Pac and Plays, Safe Sleep and Car Seats. 

•  In the month of September, Trilliam began offering free mental health classes to anyone 
that registered.  The Healing Place in New Hanover County was opened for individuals 
with substance abuse issues.  The referral process is through Trilliam. 

• In the month of October, there was a free mobile medicine program offered on October 
4th where individuals could go online and register for certain medications.  Also, in the 
month of October, Smart Start hosted an event called Kidfest on Halloween night from 
6:00 to 8:00 and invited everyone in the community.   

• The Salvation Army began taking applications for Angel Tree the beginning of October.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

TEAM MEMBERS  
WASHINGTON COUNTY  

CCPT-CFPT MEMBERSHIP 
 
 

DSS Director or member of staff   Anne Hathaway, CPS Supervisor 

Local law enforcement officer(s)  Deputy Kelly Tate 
       
Attorney from the DA’s office   Seth Edwards, District Attorney 

Exec. Dir. of local community action  Wendy Hedgebeth, EIC 

County schools or designee   Dina Brown 

Member of DSS Board   Wendy Furlough 

Local GAL Coordinator   Gwendolyn Goddard, District Supervisor 

Local health care Provider   Latonya Jenkins, Director of Nursing 

Director of Dept of Health   Vicky Manning, Interim Director 

Emergency Medical services provider Jennifer O’Neal, EMS Director 

District Court Judge    Darrell B. Cayton, Jr., District Court Judge 

County Medical Examiner   Jennifer O’Neal, County Coroner 

Representative of local day care 
Or head start program    Kay Overton, Executive Director 
 
Parents of a child who died before 
Reaching 18th birthday   Wendy Furlough 
 
 
Appointed by County Commissioners 
 
Appointee 1     Chinita Vaughan, Trillium 
 
Appointee 2     Doretha Garrett, Domestic Violence 
 
Appointee 3     Brandy Goodwin, Library Director 
 
Appointee 4     Zebedee Taylor, Roanoke Development Center 
 
Appointee 5     Jean Warren, Deputy Clerk   



 

 

Nicole C. Barnes, MPH, Health Director 

Washington County Child Fatality Prevention Team  
Report to the Martin-Tyrrell-Washington District Board of Health 

November 15th, 2024 
 

Background: North Carolina has a three-tier Child Fatality Prevention System of which 
the local child fatality prevention teams are one component. The three tiers of the system 
include the North Carolina Child Fatality Prevention Task Force which is a legislative 
study commission, the North Carolina Child Fatality Prevention Team (state team) which 
reviews child death through the Medical Examiner system, and the Community Child 
Protection Teams which review active cases of suspected abuse and neglect, and child 
deaths due to suspected abuse and neglect. The local child fatality prevention teams 
(CFPTs) were legislatively established in 1993 and there are teams in all 100 counties. It 
is the responsibility of the local health departments to ensure that these teams are 
operational. 
 
Mission: The mission of the local team is to review the deaths of children, ages 0 -17 
years, that are not due to suspected abuse or neglect and about which no previous report 
of abuse or neglect has been made to the county department of social services within the 
past 12 months The local CFPTs review those child deaths due to homicide, suicide, 
fires, illness, prematurity, and perinatal cause, among others, to search for ways to 
prevent child deaths. 
 
Purpose: The purpose of the local child fatality prevention teams is to 1) identify the 
causes of child deaths; 2) identify gaps or deficiencies that may exist to improve the 
delivery of services to children and families; and 3) make recommendations for changes 
and carry out changes that could prevent future child fatalities (Division of Public Health 
Agreement Addendum).  
 
The Washington County Child Fatality Prevention Team, a sub-committee of the 
Washington County Child Protection Team meets quarterly during the year. It is during 
these meetings that team members review child fatalities that occurred the previous year, 
determine if any system problems caused or contributed to the fatality, make any 
recommendations, or develop action plans to address the area of concern.  These findings 
are reported to the Team Coordinator in the Children and Youth Branch within the North 
Carolina Division of Public Health. 
 
The Washington County Child Fatality Prevention Team met four times in 2023: January 
24th, May 23rd, August 30th, and November 28th. One case was reviewed for 2022.  
 
 
 
 



Our Review Coordinator, Nicole Barnes was able to attend the State Child Fatality 
System Summitt which was held in March of 2023. We continue to check and install car 
seats within our three-county district including Martin Tyrrell and Washington counties.  
 
The Washington County Child Fatality Prevention Team will continue to review any 
child fatalities, identify risk areas, and promote safety to reduce the number of fatalities 
in our community. 
 
 



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
December 2, 2024 

Board of Commissioners’ Meeting 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 
No report submitted. 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
  
Recreation is good--our football team brought the trophy back on Nov 16.  We are now signing 
up for basketball and getting the floor right at the gym to play.    
 
 
Elections 
Dora Bell 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
  
Staffing: 

No changes to report. 

Programs: 

• Our usual Wednesday programs are still ongoing; In-Person Storytime – 10:30 AM and 
WIP/Virtual Storytime – NOON. 

• It is getting a little harder to find books that are able to read online as a lot of read-aloud 
permissions from well-known publication companies have expired; virtual sessions will 
continue as long as approved materials can be located within our library.  

• We will be hosting local author Nyla Boyd on Thursday, November 21st from 4:30-6:30 
PM so she can conduct a “Meet the Author” book signing event. 

• We are already scheduling performers for the 2025 Summer Reading Season!  
• Winter Programming (i.e. “Visit from Santa”) may be coming to the library depending on 

community interest.  

Other Library/Community Happenings: 

• The library will be closed November 28th – 30th for the Thanksgiving Holiday.  
• Collection Development is still ongoing; we have added a lot of wonderful books and 

films to our collection since the new fiscal year began!  
• PRL Director Judi Bugniazet will soon be retiring; we have narrowed down our candidate 

search and will begin interviewing soon to find her replacement. 



 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
   

 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services – sending tax 
information, verifying balances due, completing tax certifications, adding attorney 
fees and/or suit cost.  

2. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling value adjustments, 
refunds, releases, address corrections and general questions regarding motor 
vehicles.  

3. Continue to verify PINs for Deed filings, process Tax Certifications and assign 
addresses in GIS – we had several address requests this month. We have a variation 
of these daily.  

4. Continue to work with the landfill. They call us for verification of ownership 
of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and that person 
is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their debris or 
trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the address 
they have given.  

5. The Statistical report was submitted. 
6. Sent mapping updates to Joe with Atlas. Had correspondence with Joe several 

times for assistance with mapping requests.  
7. Received debt set-off payments this month. 



 

8. The office remains busy with tax payments, releases, appeal questions, 
exemption questions, questions that always arise after the tax bills are received.  

9. The office staff sat in on a webinar regarding organizing files and proper file 
naming.   

10. Jerrian finished processing prepayments toward tax bills.  
11. Darlene Fikes and I met to discuss the timeline for the Keystone software 

update.  Our office has to complete the updates to abstract files, business 
personal property files, transfers, estate files to be ready to contact Teresa with 
Cox and Company to extract the files for Keystone.  We are working with a 
deadline of December 20th for the updates, by our office, to be completed.  

12. Foreclosure sales were held November 21st by ZLS.  
 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 

 
Permits Issued    13 
 
Inspections Completed  50 – does not include all of WC PK-12 done – ongoing 
 
Plan/Plat reviews      3 
 
Floodplain Reviews      3 
 
November 4, 19            Swamp Hogs Staff meetings with Manager Potter 
 
November 1, 8, 14, 22   Tyrrell County Contract 
 
November 21 - -Meeting with WC School construction team 

-Planning Board meeting – reviewing FEMA required updates to the 
Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance 

 
November 25 -  Meeting scheduled with developer at Breezy Banks Estates to discuss processes 
to proceed with construction of homes. 
 
Ongoing –  
 Washington Regional Medical Center – fire watch continues – receiving required reports 

 
 Washington County Pre-K through 12 – nearing completion – inspections are more 

frequent – issues are being resolved per the engineered plan 
 
 I have been selected (as one of the few Level III inspectors with 5 trades) to sit on the 

committee to write the test for an updated Law and Administration certification.  These are 
virtual/TEAM meetings 

 so far. 
 
 Working with municipalities to be sure their Flood Ordinance is updated and adopted for 

the CRS/NFIP/FEMA inspection process. 



 

 
 Monitoring Senate Bill 382 which includes major changes to Local Government authority 

for zoning 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Landfill 
VACANT 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Harley Spruill 
 
Only Detention submitted a report. 

 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Senior Center 
Renee’ Collier 
 
No report submitted. 
 



 

Surplus 
Debbie Knieper 
 

 
 
 
Airport 
Mary Moscato 
 
Project Update:  
• Airfield Lighting Improvement Project 
 Pending calibration and an FAA flight check on the PAPI (Precision Approach Path Indicators) 

lights. Added the replacement of 20 taxiway lights to the scope of work. The fence around the 
beacon will be installed before the end of the month. AVCON is scheduling a final inspection 
for the first week of December to close out the project. 

• RPZ Obstruction Removal 
 Funding for the construction phase came through earlier this month. AVCON will be submitting 

a scope to the County and the Department of Aviation for comments/approval. Next step is to 
set up advertising/bid dates. Plan to advertise in early December and take bids early/mid-
January. Construction can begin soon thereafter (weather dependent).  



 

• AWOS 
 This is the first project that our new engineering firm Talbert & Bright is taking over. They are 

working with the Department of Aviation (DOA) on the project scope and budget. 
 

Other Activities: 
• Attended a NC Airport Leadership and Management Program (ALMP) Course 2: Airport 
Administration and Governance.  
• Held the 4th Quarter Airport Advisory Committee meeting 
• The National Black Bear Festival’s Christmas Laser Light Show is scheduled for December 
11th-14th with 3 shows nightly.  
 
Revenue Update (as of 11/22): 
• November Fuel Sales:  $5,328.84 
• Total fuel sales for FY25: $33,658.59 
• Hangar Leases:  $15,600 (100%) 
 
 
Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business: 

• Converting lights at the Water Department in Roper. 
• Countertop at the Airport. 
• Board of Commissioners handicap ramp. 
• Painting lines at DSS. 

Maintenance: 

• Completed 39 work orders. 
• Completed set up and taking down Elections. 
• Hung up a new sign for DSS. 
• Converted the lights over the fuel pump at the Airport. 
• Started painting hallways in the Courthouse. 
• Completed all additional requests from Probation (installing outside light, painting 

parking lot lines). 
• Repaired the pump house at the Landfill. 

Unfinished Business: 

• Complete all the unfinished projects. 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 
  

 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Amount* -$                                        

Current Year Tax 1,034,603.36$    472,813.97$       1,716,260.60$  359,027.43$   3,582,705.36$                     

Current Yr Discount -$                      (2,288.44)$          (17,589.09)$       -$                  (19,877.53)$                          

Current Year Penalty -$                      84.94$                 3,143.33$          758.09$           3,986.36$                              

Current Year Interest -$                      -$                      1.85$                   345.61$           347.46$                                 Oct Int is on Deferred Taxes made Due 

Watershed Tax Current Yr 900.00$               1,339.03$            20,694.17$        4,317.62$       27,250.82$                           

Watershed Discount -$                      (25.44)$                (205.23)$             -$                  -$                                        

Watershed Penalty -$                      1.05$                    37.18$                7.86$                46.09$                                    

Watershed Interest -$                      -$                      -$                     3.38$                -$                  -$                       3.38$                                      Oct Int is on Deferred Taxes made Due 

Prior Year Tax 113,986.52$       43,681.96$         24,819.23$        16,739.69$     199,227.40$                         

Prior Year Penalty 533.81$               46.79$                 88.76$                56.61$             725.97$                                 

Prior Year Interest 107,944.06$       164,514.32$       6,368.56$          3,241.20$       282,068.14$                         

Prior Year Watershed 427.68$               172.72$               237.18$              185.25$           1,022.83$                              

Prior Year WS Penalty 5.90$                    0.28$                    0.91$                   0.70$                7.79$                                      

Prior Year WS Interest 483.98$               346.23$               337.46$              331.52$           1,499.19$                              

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                                        

Prepayments -$                      83.08$                 921.61$              2,654.05$       3,658.74$                              

TOTAL 1,258,885.31$   680,770.49$      1,755,116.52$  387,669.01$  -$                  -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  4,082,672.00$                     

Initiated 0 0 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                                        

Satisfied/Cancelled 0 0 0 0 0

Amount -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                                        

*

 $         94,977.77 91,165.98$         85,475.57$        176,641.55$                         

 -$                                        

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                                        

Collected All Years 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      79,282.71$     482,552.23$                         

Bad Checks -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

TOTAL 14,532.69$         28,278.01$         360,458.82$      79,282.71$     -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  482,552.23$                         

Billed Current Yr -$                      -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  -$                                        

Collected Current Yr 291.70$               259.16$              210.84$           -$                  761.70$                                 

TOTAL 291.70$               -$                      259.16$              210.84$           -$                  -$                       -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  761.70$                                 

Collected Current Yr 6,167.86$            12,381.04$         36,559.47$        10,230.76$     0 65,339.13$                           

Creswell Levy 349.86$               1,674.35$            24,831.41$        4,732.93$       31,588.55$                           

1,375,205.19$   814,269.87$      2,262,700.95$  482,126.25$  -$                  -$                      -$                     -$                  -$                  -$                  -$                -$                  4,934,302.26$                     

Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC We received a payment per the payment plan 11/7/24. I remain in touch regarding additional payments and the proposed sale. 

VL Group A, LLC We received payment in full for the 2023 taxes. No delinquencies, only the 2024 taxes are due. 

Plymouth Solar, LLC No payments rec'd on the 2023 taxes. Delinquent balance due $27,688.26 (there was an adjustment on the 2023 taxes due to an assessment error)

I am in contact with the same person who is handling the Albemarle Beach Solar, LLC payment plan for a status on the payments for VL Group, LLC and Plymouth Solar, LLC.  

We received a payment for VL Group A, LLC to pay the 2023 taxes. 

Tax and Tag Collections

Solid Waste Fees

Bank Attachments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a notice that no funds are available.

TAX

FY24-25

Collections

Advalorem Garnishments

Eddie Smith Drainage

Drainage Fees - Other

Town Collections

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Tax Fees

Current Yr Discount Current Year Penalty Current Year Interest Watershed Tax Current Yr Watershed Discount Watershed Penalty Watershed Interest Prepayments TOTAL



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in 

million gallons)
8.08 8.93 7 6.896 7.547 6.94 7.77 6.19 6.16 8.23 2.755 8.28 86

Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in 

million gallons)
9.51 6.91 6.97 7 30

Base Charges 71,439$      71,283$      71,361$      71,127$    285,210$        

Consumption Charges 81,120$      46,350$      47,445$      47,580$    222,495$        

Reconnecton Charges 1,890$        2,240$        2,170$        2,135$      8,435$            

 Number of Abatements 18 9 4 31                    

  Dollar Amount of 

Abatements 
2,408.50$  3,608$        413$           6,429.00$      

Water Pumped                       
(in million gallons)

16.4 15.9 14.14 13.16 59.600

Number of Customers 2682 2676 2679 2670 10,707

New taps 2 2 1 0 2

Water Billed to Roper 4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$     4,844.65$   19,378.60$             

0

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

FY Water Consumption Comparison

Water Billed FY 23-24  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 24-25 (in million gallons)



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

WC Dispatched 161 131 148

WC Transported 124 95 120 339

WC Refusals 37 36 28 101

Transport Washington

Hospital to Hospitals 0 1 0 1

SNF to Doctors 112 94 132 338

Hospital Discharges 13 9 19 41

EMS Back Up 4 5 6 15

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
YTD 

Totals

TC Dispatched 51 66 51 168

TC Transported 36 41 39 116

TC Refusals 15 25 12 52

Mutual Aid Hyde

HC Dispatched 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Transported 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

HC Refusals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
                                                                

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)

FY24-25

Washington County

Tyrrell County

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)



43%

13%

22%

15%

7%0%0%0%

EMS Dispatches for FY24-25
(Washington, Tyrrell & Hyde Counties)

WC Dispatched

WC Transported

WC Refusals

TC Dispatched

TC Transported

TC Refusals

HC Dispatched

HC Transported

HC Refusals



July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD 
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 62.41 42.11 90.43 67.89 262.84

Inert Debris 76.5 32.1 27.58 43.95 180.13

Scrap Metal 0.57 1.34 0.49 15.85 18.25

C&D 32.24 44.74 47.06 149.03 273.07

Tires 11.76 4.92 5.37 4.57 26.62

LANDFILL  (in tons)

FY 24-25

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Landfill Collections in Tons 

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building $4,702.70 3,080.00$      1,960.40$   2,043.50$   $11,786.60

Zoning 100.00$    200.00$       25.00$         50.00$         $375.00

Reinspect 325.00$    100.00$       475.00$       725.00$       $1,625.00

SWUF $175.00 145.84$       87.50$         -$             -$             -$             -$             -$             $408.34
HO Recovery 

Fee $10.00 -$             -$             10.00$         -$             -$             -$             -$             -$            $20.00

Total $5,312.70 $3,525.84 $2,547.90 $2,828.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $14,214.94

PLANNING AND ZONING

FY24-25

Inspections and Fees

$0.00

$500.00

$1,000.00

$1,500.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

$3,000.00

$3,500.00

$4,000.00

$4,500.00

$5,000.00

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY24 -25) 

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

83%

3%

11%
3%0%

Fees Collected 
Percentages

Building Zoning

Reinspect SWUF

HO Recovery Fee



July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
YTD Total

Unduplicated Attendees 79 79
Total Guest Check-Ins 29 29
New Member Forms Submitted 8 8
Center-Sponsored Events 450 450
Special Events 149 149
Caregiver's Support Groups 0 0
Exercise Room 64 64
Fitness Workout (ON HOLD) 0 0
Yoga 8 8
Chair Exercise 51 51
Line Dance (ON HOLD) 8 8
Crafts With Sandra Lee 13 13
Drop-in Activities 16 16
Pickle Ball (ON HOLD) 0 0
Computers / Wi-fi 4 4
Roper Classes 14 14
Creswell Classes 10 10

YTD Total
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Congregate Meals Served 0
Home-Delivered Meals Served 0

YTD Total
748.00$  -$           -$            -$           -$           -$         -$           -$            -$            -$            -$         -$     748.00$       

Congregate Donations to AC 69.00$     69.00$          
MOW Donations to AC 550.00$  550.00$       
Activity Fees to County GF 80.00$     80.00$          
Senior Collected Donations 49.00$     49.00$          

SENIOR CENTER
FY24-25



July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June
Total (by 

Gender)

Total 

Incacerations

50 52 67 56 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 225 225
Male 34 34 48 30 146

Female 8 8 8 10 34

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8 10 10 15 43 43

Male 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Female 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

HYDE

DETENTION 
FY24-25

Incarcerations by County

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

US PRISON TRANSPORT 

180

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

SMCP               Male

99%

0%1%0%0%0%0%0%0%

Incarcerations by County (Total FY24-25)

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

Northampton

SURRY

US PRISON TRANSPORT



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 1105 998 1022 929 0 0 0 0 0 0 4054

Law Enforcement 853 755 776 676 3060
Animal Control 73 89 77 79 318

EMS 179 154 169 174 676

Reported Incidents 31 10 41

Total Arrests 0 0 0 0 0 0

Misdemeanor Arrests 7 2 9

Felony Arrests 10 0 10

Total Papers Served 0 0 51 21 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72

Criminal Papers Served 17 4 21

Civil Papers Served 34 17 51

Total Papers Outstanding 0 0 36 39 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  75

Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 19 26
Civil Papers Outstanding 29 20 49

Gun Permits Issued  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0

Conceals Pending  N/A 10 9 19

Concealed Permits Issued  N/A 0

SHERRIFF

FY24-25

8%

17%

Dispatched Calls (FY24-25)

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS



75%

EMS

40

50

60

41

51
49

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY24 -25)



JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE
YTD 

TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plymouth Police Department 0

Public Works 0
EMS Calls in the Town of Plymouth 0

Plymouth Fire Department

SHERRIFF

FY24-25



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   11 
   
       DATE:     December 2, 2024 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 

A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 
 



DRAFT 

 

                        
November 4, 2024 

 
 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on 
Monday, November 4, 2024, at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John 
C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were in attendance. Also, present were County Manager/ 
County Attorney Curtis S. Potter, Assistant County Manager, Jason Squires, and County 
Finance Officer Missy Dixon. Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett was unable to attend the 
meeting. 
 
 Chair Keyes called the meeting to order. Mr. Lloyd Jones gave the invocation.  Mr. 
Leon Pringle led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:   
 
 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to approve tonight’s Agenda.  
Commissioner Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA: 

Items listed under Consent are generally of a routine nature.  The Board may take action to 
approve/disapprove all items in a single vote.  Any item may be withheld from a general action, to 
be discussed and voted upon separately at the discretion of the Board. 

 
a) Approval of Minutes of October 7, 2024 & Closed Session Minutes for the 

meetings of April 1, May 6, June 3, July 1, August 5, and September 9, 2024  
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents 
c) RESO 2024-030 Authorizing Sale of Real Property, 310 E. Fourth St., Plymouth 
d) RESO 2024-035 PROCLAMATION Supporting Operation Green Light For Active 

Military Service Members In Transition To Civilian Life (Veteran Status) 
e) North Carolina Education Lottery Public School Fund—Network Installation at 

new PreK-12 school = $186,000 
 
Commissioner Phelps spoke in support of the Green Light Initiative for military 
service members. 
 
Commissioner Walker made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM:  None.  

 
            DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION UPDATE— COOPERATIVE  

EXTENSION’S “REPORT TO THE PEOPLE”: Ms. Rebecca Liverman, Cooperative 
Extension Director & Staff gave an update to the Board on things going on in their office. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson asked for more info on the Walk on Water event.  Ms. 

Sonana Jefferson explained it will occur every Monday, Wednesday, and Friday 
from 12:15 PM to 2:45 PM 

 
 Commissioner Spruill thanked Cooperative Extension for their efforts. 



DRAFT 

 

 Commissioner Keyes thanked Rebecca Liverman for her work with the SHIP 
program. 

 
AMERICA 250TH ANNIVERSARY:  Ms. Chris Barber with help of Mr. Tom 

Harrison, TTA, spoke to the Board on the abovementioned topic.  Mr. Potter went over the 
following information. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
    

A motion will be needed to grant the County Manager the authority to 
approve the placement of a historical wayside marker at an exact 
location to be determined by the County Manager in consultation with 
the Facilities Director on county property located at 100 NC Hwy 32N 
in Roper, NC, provided however, the Board shall retain the right to: 

 
  a. approve the actual text, message, pictures, or other materials to 

be included within  the marker itself prior to its placement; and to 
  b. remove or relocate the marker to an appropriate alternative 

location if deemed necessary or advisable by the board in the future. 
 

 Commissioner Keyes spoke on serving on the Committee with Commissioner 
Walker.   

 
  Commissioner Phelps made a motion to grant the County Manager the 
above listed authority.  Commissioner Spruill seconded; Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:  Mr. Kelly Chesson, NCACC Strategic Management 

Coordinator spoke to the Board. 
 



DRAFT 

 

County Manager Potter described the Economic Development task force as a 
small 5-6 person group of County Employees that would advise the larger Economic 
Development Council. 

 
  Commissioner Keyes mentioned that a similar group had existed in the past.   
 

Commissioner Spruill thanked Kelly Chesson for his work and asked that the 
Commissioners be given a copy of the PowerPoint and additional information. 

 
TTA UPDATE:  Mr. Tom Harrison, TTA Director gave the Board an update on the 2024  

Bear Festival.   
 

  BOARDS & COMMITTEES:  Mr. Jason Squires, Deputy Clerk to the Board spoke to 
the Board about the following requests. 
 

 Planning Board  
 
At their meeting on October 17, 2024, the Washington County Planning Board recommended 
the re-appointment of Mary Barnes to the Planning Board to serve the three-year term ending 
December 31, 2027.   
 
Mrs. Barnes’s current term expires December 31, 2024.   She serves as the Plymouth 
township representative. She has agreed to serve if re-appointed. 

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to re-appoint Mrs. Barnes to the Planning 

Board.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Voting Delegate for the NCACC Legislative Goals Conference 
 
The NCACC Legislative Goals Conference will be held Nov. 14-15, 2024, in Wake 
County at the Marriott Raleigh Crabtree Valley. Each county will be entitled to vote on 
legislative goal proposal submissions brought before the membership. Voting will take 
place Nov. 14-15. 
 
To facilitate the voting process, each county is asked to designate one voting delegate 
(and optional alternate voting delegate). 
 
Chair Keyes and Commissioner Johnson are registered for the conference.  The Board 
needs to appoint one as the voting delegate and the other as the optional alternate.  

 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to appoint Commissioner Keyes as the 
voting delegate and for Commissioner Johnson to serve as the alternate.  Commissioner 
Walker seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 

amendments that were in the Commissioners’ package.  Please see below. 
 

https://www.ncacc.org/events/legislative-goals-conference-2024/


DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
Commissioner Spruill made a motion to approve the budget transfers/ amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

OTHER ITEMS BY COMMISSIONERS OR STAFF: 
 
County Manager Potter spoke on the following topics: 
 
 Flood Plain Ordinance will be going before the Planning Board in December and 

should be presented to the Commissioners in January.   
 
 Budget Workshop calendar will be going before the Board in December for 

adoption.  CM Potter listed prospective  dates as 1/15/25-1/17/25 or 1/21/25-
1/25/25.  Commissioner Johnson was not available to attend 1/15-1/17. 

 
 Veterans Day will be recognized on 11/11.  Commissioner Phelps spoke on the 

Creswell Veterans Day event. 
 
 The lease agreement for the new Washington County School building will be 

coming before the Board in December for approval.  
 
 The updated YORE table will be coming before the Board in December for 

approval as well.  The purpose of the update is to provide employees on the latter 
stages of the YORE table an annual salary increase as opposed to the current bi-
annual frequency.  

 
Commissioner Phelps spoke on the Mid County Fire Department parade and BBQ 
chicken plate sale.  He gave parade details. 
 
Commissioner Spruill spoke on Roper Fire Department shrimp plate sale.  He also 
attended the WCS construction update meeting and is pleased with the results.   
 
Commissioner Johnson will be attending the NCACC Legislative Goals meetings.  Goals 
will be whittled down to 5-7 ideas to lobby NC Congress. 
 
Commissioner Keyes will be attending the Legislative Goals meeting as well.  She also 
addressed a recent news article featured in the Roanoke Beacon that discussed the 
Board’s accomplishments during her tenure as a Commissioner.  

 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS§143-
318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege), and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Phelps seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 

 Commissioner Phelps made a motion to come out of Closed Session.  Commissioner Spruill 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to authorize the County Manager to execute a letter 
extending the deadline for substantial completion of the PK12 school to December 30th if 
necessary, and to negotiate with Metcon and settle in the County’s best interest regarding the 
payment of any applicable costs incurred as a result of the extension.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to reapprove RESO 2024-035 PROCLAMATION 
Supporting Operation Green Light with the provision that the incorrect date of “November 7, 
2022 through November 14, 2022” be amended to read November 7, 2024 through November 14, 
2024.  Commissioner Johnson seconded; motion carried unanimously.   
 
 Commissioner Walker made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Phelps 
seconded; motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

___________________________    ________________________ 
                    Jason Squires, ACM                     Ann C. Keyes 
                Deputy Clerk to the Board                        Chair 


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda December 2, 2024
	12-2-2024 Item 1 Organizational items
	12-2-2024 Item 2 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds & Insolvents
	2025 Commissioner Regular Meeting Dates
	2025 Washington County Holiday Schedule
	Copy of FY24 Pay Tables Schedule eff 12.16.24 v20241127
	Budget Calendar FY26 20241125 for 20241202 BOCC mtg
	BOCC Memo re Bardill Tax Foreclosure Contract for 20241202 BOCC mtg
	12-2-2024 Item 3 (public forum)
	12-2-2024 Item 4 Lobbyist conract renewal
	BOCC Memo re Lobbying Contracts for 20241202 BOCC mtg
	12-2-2024 Item 5  RESO 2024-036 Economic Dev Council
	BOCC Memo re formation of Economic Development Council for 20241202 BOCC mtg
	12-2-2024 Item 6 Skinnersville Center Update
	BOCC Memo re Skinnesville Civic Center Land Req for 20241202 BOCC mtg
	12-2-2024 Item 7 Regional Detention Center Study
	Chowan Gates and Washington County Detention Center
	12-2-2024 Item 8 PK12 Project & Fundng Agreement - Lease update
	12-2-2024 Item 9 Finance Officer's Report
	Budget Amendments and Transfers as of 11-26-2024
	11-26-2024 Financial Reports
	Revenue Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 11-26-204
	Expenditure Transaction Report-Budget Amendments-Transfers as of 11-26-2024
	12-2-2024 Item 10 Other Items
	WASHINGTON COUNTY CCPT Annual Report 2024
	CFPT REPORT 2023-
	Reports for 12-2-2024 BoCC Meeting
	Cover Sheet for Stat Report
	FY24-25 Statisitc Report  (2)
	12-2-2024 Item 11 Closed Session
	11-4-2024 Minutes w JJB edits



